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ol & fom
@A AE

qmaﬁmﬁ@@ﬁwwwﬁ@%& SR SHEET 100 8 T o 31fes

. % g R A O 9 7é | e A wiiefaat  erae #, e gfs, T8

ITELIRT 3T TV ST T, STRRAHT o 31 3T TRaRT & HEmeo S 95 4 e
P AN &1 AR R F (SFUAT 2001 AT R FIHR H1 2006 1 {0E F) SAF & 3R,
%&Tiﬁfzs%ﬁrwawmwﬁraﬁw%,mﬁ@rww%W%ﬁﬁwﬁaﬁaﬁm@w
FH & FEE |

2007-12 & TIREG ATSHT & XS & U, NG &l JTHHT avaamd 73.96 Hfera
AT SR H T | T F 47.43 foferm s 1 6 T &F 7 7 | IR TR F SR,
I & T, T AR SR H 97% N 25.73 MfcTa s 1 srevd T SR e
T @t F URERT F AT € | IR SRR F YT SR HEe U e Y SR o
T U & SER, Fdl A ATAR & 90% T o 31feh 37 42.68 THfcta s T
&t H T Y@ ¥ 9 F oReRt F foe sufera €

3N, TR H AT FEAT 31 A & Prebg f§geil § T oF W & | 3wgdad To 37 Smade
IMITTHAT & FARH & fTE, 2007-12 F I facd TR &1 THF 10 @RG S 79T T e
TR | Selfth SRR S TS Sarg A o e T % I e 3Uetsy HU 1 © 3 7 ufd
T T A Al e 1 X Y 9 W R | T8 Uk gAY Hed w1 1 3 a9y w9, 5
T F 3T § THE ST Tohell & foF 3700 3R Tqferd o9 & IRaR W G 3T aede ar
T % e T e | SNari o S G emgfd 7w S fefq e R &, St iy o e
2 VT Sl &P § aTeX ket S § |

TS URART &l “SITA S ol AIar Sl THIfad wal Qi 3 6l 5 a offd &9 ¥ FHrsit
3 T o &t 7 e 1 G S ST T Y § R F 8 | 7E 39 S B YgE fFear
Fardr  fo oX Afq fafaet T 90 for & srfq gl serdm s 3yas S, Sy
AT AR 3R wHiar il s 9ae GOy ®9 T 3T A T w3 f59h I e
TEHT F 3799 & |

SR Gehel B IS MY U SNffeh fow & 0 X 9@ 5T, IIeHeRur 7 gfs, T vl w6y
3T (U W VR A AT W) Srvat e glaurei oy fawar % wRor e w9 ¥ anfefw
Y Y FAH T (77 3 i F Freeie Sl U5 ¥ STuaitar o € € | S5 7 Hadt 9 1 A
3T ffor S off AT S T ©, AT ST & P 3T AN R W IR ST H YA e § S
T TP & SRR T 1 Il T 95 X ST € | IR 99 ¥% © R ereq o ot
% IRERT F fofe Qi e & fofe 7 Fact ey 31 Tyl wHiary T Savas &
| 9 Y ¥, AT S 1 do F SYfe v FE ¢ | ig9g ST Sie TR s U
Y FRPT S vt W off &9 8 S &7 96 © | TSI 39 S T % A W
T 3fIX O ST ST JOMell T &3 o for e &2 ¥t @, Foredy e TR 3R i fisrd
S % AnTeR ¥, Sifew Gae Twet ¥ fFeeT Gl THET S o A ¥ s ol i yeweel

QU A W Ferdr et |
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1. y‘g‘gﬁﬁm - 2006-07 iy ve fgd fafee T “GreemE o’
frreteor (XT), 10 e St fad e
1.1 Tremes &1 yig favieang TQ e ¥ o Rl T “wuw/feer” fafzor
1.1.1 39 3% ¥ 3N T 5,671.60 FIE T F () feor & | feradt T fercirr amee
T@Tﬁﬁﬂﬁa?ﬂéﬁﬂﬁﬁrgﬁa%  FHf A F S Ffed 3 5=
TR # TR 5,500.00 FAE T o | iz T F7d g fm & |
Fol g & Hiaezor #§ F werdEiat 1.4 af % GF §F F R # R 7,516.50
T e 7 5,375.00 FAS T (98 Fiwrd) TS T & |
I 3 37l TAfded 7 125.00 FAS FIC . .
2 W)WW%&T lwmw 1.1.5 %?TEFrWaﬂqulq Hed Yl I SHEIN
ST e A 3 3 Fa TR 2530 4% o1 TS Sl ad T ot T o |
g B Al we/Hay Adeq #4716 A% T O Y GES F o107 Afad i
yfaera o | TR faed & Yol Frisd & arferd il % fore e fored &7 Qo s
W,ngﬂwmmmgw 7 7 Tea | T ¥ F@ Freffad §
T ST el Giqaeor &l 3 fererd Stardr < | . s R Y e p—
1.1.2 S &1 faet yares et &1 f=elr a¥e g 0T GIET T T |
I T A E o S A ASHT & S TS T
1.1.3 &% & areqafy o1 ferdt (arfofsas i) T A fedifimmfar &1 S 37 iR
&1 fra Ydmg e w far. T e v 1+ (39) Taed 3T M (2T 317) =0 & fore
3T SMEHRIT F 7en w1 + fafeor (¥fdm) 100% YAfded JeH HT & & A
fezm & | <efafy 3UR & FEHA @ Hiee AT T |

dhnri P, thdambara

le Union Minister of Flnar

10 JEE, 2007 F FZHI7T AT 73 STHT 47 W, [Aeawd GIeTs)] I0e7q # 67 #d 5T .
5T TG T FART Forow, T T (FAT FIR) , AR G TR 3HTT FATT F FIRIT FF |
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FERT T, T T (

&a7 JYR), @ 97 TS

WWWWWWWE/

§F JFGT T 4 7eEt U He, 4 OF SR, e OF Y R T a4 99 5. TF OF 3G
Y.T.9T, T3, YT TEHR, A TG 76 3T FATT H FIET & 1

o 3T TF I AT FH & A< =
THPTe 0T T STl =X § e Fae
el Afeeel & foe urdior &= o
e EH () |

o IftT facd TRIMl & WY Has WA
el & gee & faw sradE
REATSHTE T B 376 [deia Jerdl
S|

o N A dF T e UHI aq
FAGSA (A2 9F) T el a™
fored Fufar wr g (i) TemEar
T F S I 6 & Gadd
& VY FRESIE (42 9) & T &
3fed T & T T ASHT off grees
T

1.1.7 &% % 3Mfa¥a SIuH 3T T Jee ae
T & Tk 91T & ®Y H < Wi 1@/
fafer aref ‘s e S 3T 3ar
facd gE1-2000-05" F TF gfea fqverso
3T ‘M T AT AT |
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2.

2.1

2.2

2.3

UL eaw@T, 2006-07

Afeass sreferawer ¥ o 2006-07 & X
ghes = W | qf, Y garhiiaers
S99 T FoF qA & oAl AR 7
fapra & fd 5.2 9fderd ™ A% & S 5
e dH 9 H <51 5.4 Ufaerd § o & o |

Ty, ST Al LA Srefaeerail 4 e
®Y F GERHIT % T fodsl ardiexy T goe
gfeg o=t @ | gHfte anfele Foared &l orfea
T 57 <9I o facel fsh gSi & et efdars
T Wi TSI JaTe ol SR R © |

T o S, YIS U H Gohe I e
s ¥ e T e T o | A% gehreT
T 3T o foh 3TqATe 01 o qageal o aref
REAS P STAGH TgF F0T G- T
Toll 53T o, ST e AT s ST Sl
13% eram o | ffya Feat=iar o o =
el U Nl & &9 H Uiy a9 &
QY TR H T A | GIFT T F aoE
TSI & Fahe Tt AT & T w9 ¥
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2.4

3.1

3.2

3T T T F A T H &Y
J yferd fopa | S 3iE o, A7 Tfad
TC o, M T ST 31E% STl &9 ¥ UgT
o | STafch HIYIST a4 0 4 [ahis T 18
T8 T Sl STl B TRl &, e, A
Tl o fae & 9 SuRadist &l 31eq
0T [TOaHATA & URUTHETEY, 07 AfTshH!
FT ST T 1 &l | S O o e
fFe T IrEed S fgaRm ‘Hiew T 9
3refergeel o T HagTeH 0T Hohd 1 Y0
gireea forar |

TN, TRATT S et GaUTsT Tahe F
T Tl 5% o foTge T o U gas
F0T (shfe2) U= o JOF & S qrid
TR0 SIS o e IR e goumetr
&1 G- i 49T 95 ASTRAT S | I,
30 G F TRUMHEEY 39T d1eIX K00
(3f92) & T U Frufie sy o
AfeeTar T TE | TRl 3T ST
referarenstt & foe srufufed gfed =
=AM &l e o 3T B sifHfeEaad €

@I eeawE : 2006-07

MY T A erferaten ¥ 9 9fs <@r
TE € | Gohel B 3 T @ 2006-07 H
SR 9.4% 1 & T g &t 3, S o 2004-
05 H 7.5% &I ol § Tk Gefes Sgradl |
T & T 2006-07 H, el B 3 H
9T 379 A 3T 2005-06 H 9.6%
T H 11.2% & gfg <1 @1 | <7 FHie
rfeEEe ST qd TRHN U9 A o
S T 3R I facdr & e o Jfaar s
Uler T TR, 39 T Hecdqul §Eah &
®TH o WER F T

TSR GER T 2004  TSTRHA A
3T 512 e M & S W, 2006-07 H

3.3

34

TSR AIfar & ol 3eedll § ¥ U
o | ¢ aferd anfefe gfs gred e & JI,
GfAfere T 37 Snfefe feervar & Trer-are
A | M F Fll T Gl 3T TsRa
1T, JASTHNE = AR Genfd SgEe ¥
T Fehel B IS & 0.1-0.2 Hferd fog
Tk Wreifieh =1 W T ¥ Tehel 5] SIS o
FH Y HH 0.3 Yiqerd (65 T TSihlu =
3T 2008-09 TF JIF a¥ 0.5 Ffqwrd fog
T TE ST FH 21 T JATT Bl ST & |
T gfes, affa X TR 3T g THIEA
® &Y fodeqmd =g e Afaar T
2004 F TSTINIT AT SR Fo12 Faef 7wt
& 3T AT IS Y § T 3t
il & 12T Gehcleh o G H 37 foa |
areferawen 7 gufte anfefs g o feerar
3T FXd 5T Hrefd e e faei
U T e fer @ |

JEAL HY YOMEA & WS HAl-S[all qRa
TER & HT ol Afqal & gRomEEy
TTE o G T 3 Thet F:3/Fehe B
3CUTE 1 T 2006-07 H 11.5 Ffaerd
(3 orET) TX TR SEfh 2005-06 § 98
10.3 gfcerd |

T, Tad HEEwfdeRes dgfcaal =
ST ol ST AT ST ST 3T | 3nfefeh
A, 2006-07 & TTHA o THL (2006-
07) g JERHIT 5.2-5.4% T TG § |
g a¥ § ¥od d & Ao SuRr & @y
M- fafi= a7 o =1 3T 2l <@
T T | AN S gErhfa B e
2006-07 H &1 & $3AX o § iaferd
T o | S9F Iifaferd, S 1 o eiiR
R < &l <, [I9I ©9 § 918 & 3 ay §
SCHEI T T | Sl ST il Jrifeh 3Tafaeh
TIX & Y fEaw@n IR a5 9y
3G HAE I 95T TR |
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3.5

3.6

3.7

14

faeell goaer ferer &1 wragst (sfFadn) @
3fare Iy 2005-06 & JH ST 5.5 fafe
T T T A g ST 15.7 o= o |
I8 Qo cH ay & G H 185% al g o |
o TeT &7 fa ol gy FareT o e o JUaY
e T STt d e ¥ |

Aoet S o1 Tifees e 1 3areor sreferazen
T gfe 3T SIS WA 3T gErEhfa R
& el 32 ¥ fefera e @ | 9 afs
Tl gl o giEdd JERhiaeRRd gomsmelt
T AT O Y W@ | e §F

TSR bl Ul o < g
I 3 =N fope, fomrer atremferd e sfaua
AT & < I Ffqag gl § =
3 e AR T 5o T | T Gaferd 39
F = 7, g d S ¥ wadl, 2007 &
S S Rl A ST W 5.75%
T 97 & 3f% 399 =T A, 2007 & 25
IR fi53 ¥ 6.00% % | Haw, faerm
w7 ¥ o G O MG & H, FAd 3
0T e o A MR T[OrEed GHread i
¥ T g Aes e R faT Y e
Sifgy ) ST fear T | qenfy,  9rRaE
fsrd §% T gecdX %0 99 S facde
TGS & Ureqifed HET ST @ | 20 TG
TIC T & 3TEN F07 Gfed, Frafishar e
&7 % foe ail =0 @ e w9 F fa
Il U & 6 SR o Har fauT-
feeT Fened fhe T o |

Yod §F T geca? AR IV AN F
F fore oRaehT 3T ThIIHR0T el HHeSr
T HeST L & ol 3UT T | 727 it qfeerar
T i (Sd-11) & fFaraey & fae
3ffem feom-freier S fope e & | ST
ot cm Faer & fae g faed & & &7
ik #1 Hor Aifa % gy, aftfsas g
2008 & HIE & 37T H THA-I1 A FHEAT Y&
FL |

3.8 gfaqfd ey (faf=e) dome syfem,
2007 & |, 2007 H W fohaT T o fesy
gfayfa ey (faf=e) ifafad, 1956
TNt 5o o, fory fop e Tmffa =
Hied gfaqfasd Fo ¥ AR & 7 @
fafer FrIET Jar ol ST 66 | S99 9T
CEEREIE R b REAUICISIENCIRIING IC R
FT AT A A T

(FIT - SfF G, 2006-07, JI.R.5% F FfyF K92
06-07)

4. NG U4 Gafaa faug

4.1 a9 facq ¥ ifas onfear F w9 F 9d
N Ireqifed R ® | =1 sargred T & gaele
FF fmfor e & far i o I
T | 39 & 1 Imyfe T Wi, SN wedr 7
TSI e SaTal &l 3TT9d fohall | T 371X
A Hufed o Hod a9 &, T 31T AE faed
F1 &Y oAl & SR 9T H Syl e
| & AT % SEes off S it 6
A AT A & WY S[ST S
el & 9§ 2006-07 F ST A X
3 faed & 9 AT = @ | @ 2006-
07 ¥, 3mar facd Sufar s dfgaid Fa
MY facd 9 2005-06 F Ffaafid 30,109/
- PAUS FIC H T | 40,141/- FUS FIQ
o | fore air ol B 37er facd 7 40 gfaerd
¥ T Thafiq afies gfg T ool W & |
1992-93 ¥, S 3T M faeq Hufar &
MY faca Gfad2or &1 AT 833 FS T
o, SEfh 2006-07 § FE 1,10,000/-FS
TOC R AR | 31 T, 2007 P A Sb
FOT % e TG AT S &
A U W 13% o | gfad
O Sl ST SET 0T G e Hetae,
SRR TOTEAT 1 Q1T SR 10Tt o 9

T @A T |
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4.2

5.1

52

5.3

gfed & qedl o Rer ghg & @l ma
faed SRRl 3T Sl SR a9y facd ¥ ag
& YT AT Fd s 9 geae e
T | sgay o, &F § TRAS # gt T
Iga ¥ 9ip fafrme U e e o | 59
feon o, ardr fsrd e  arfvfsaes S &
I IO o FUamTd FOF 3% 20 @
TqC T IR e ema ® % gfa ufasfrd
FCT N Gehe feaT | 399 2919 B 9 2Am0
& foTQ UTae HHES! 37 2 g T0C ¥ 31
F FOT & faT 91 0.4% T 1% 0 97 &)

FHET G 2007-08

I FLHN & WA (A0 %A & 37,
783,000 UTHIT 37TETY fagw=y, 2006 TF ST
M9 91 37T 914,000 AT e Fufomee
g | TE, 2007 H 9Rd R H AT T
ST 3Mfefe Felefor & o HH & S9N
1,500,000 AHMAT & dfe T & a8 2006-
07 T 31T 92 S & GWIEAT § | 59 ArSHl
¥ S a7 31.6 UfdeTa o de faar T
T Y 2007-08 T 24,603 FUE FUT &
T A ST 9% |

T & & 2Afafiad, St Te8 U8 H
TR FAHIEHT fT9M o 3T TR & T3]
A F gfa GFRTess gfafwan =rdr @ |
=9 g9 & 3T 2007-08 H 4,595/-F
TIC Y 4,987/-FS TIC T 1l gfa T Mg
gfed o0 &4F I 99 &1 % I=A TR
ST B ST SR ST e | 3930
IO & (Mffd ®7 ) FAGRL 3T a7 A
T et S famdr <O 9 o @ 9
T 1 1Y 337 G |

ISt & 3Nl €9 F FHAL 97 S 2AaEE
STELT H GANH T F A2, §6 I A
ferees <X AT & 31 Urer o) &
X A E | T8 ASHI ATHEEE U9l T o

5.4

TS & FASIT 91 Bl T 4 Yfaerd &l <
F foed yad w4 © | Ui B ey
0T YT 39 99 o ST YR H 5,000/
T I I 20,000/-F0C T & TE o |
39 3T H TAN & (MF &9 F) FAAR
3T 9T T HeE e S fREmdr &2 9 9y
T T AT 33T GBI |

arg faed i nfafafar @ 9ger <9 & 9%
T H, MR St # €T 36( 1) (viii)
& 3T AT ST S H UEHH § | 9
Y, qreifireh Gfafaar s rfhs Se (i
eI Y Feard Qiafaar 3T grifie Gedr
St wd T famrg S F e oy st
T T8 eI Sl I 31T i & 3T I
RN A" | R 36(1)(viii) GG
TeT ot & fQ 3ucTey T | S99 T
Spl @ OredTe e S STe & ST ®

2006-07 & ST o HT fac=
T

6. T9qEH YUl

6.1

6.2

9 of F, 9% T reEry 9d dviafy, Hr
THER & ¥R faar | Sefafr ¥R Fad
s TR & Qe Hich 3T St o
3Tafeieh 0T Glew o1 AT 3[R feram T o
| 59 ¥ 7, d 7 fafi= 9raf § 13200.55
FUE TIC J4C | 1 ¥, 5684.05 FS
TIC T QAYTAE 34 99w fe T oo
fS5ed & ot & < o 39 & ufe
7516.50 TS TITC o |

IGT ok HIAHY T T (aier (fem)

S & ST /arisas O & fore fie-
fi=r frafzor () eifyweon & amErar
frfr RF) g # wE 2 1 e 3
TH1+(38) F frafzor () frar ® e
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FEHRRT 7 aiftfsas oa & ffar & 6.3
ST feuraty HErET S & [T I
3MMETY S T T+ & Frafzor e fear

T | GIeaE T IS A o & arstare

IR & HEFT T FT HEAE T
fraffea (es) frar &, sefs fpfgar 7 5
oo frafor (fFT) A & 1w
frafror e famar o2 facdrg sreran
F qHEE IaE & a) o e &
3= Pife 3Uafefa wLd 2|

7.1

T T GG HET

S F ST ST IR SR F g e
AT | 9% 3ifafed, s s9u U
IR SR H o g fmT S ©
fafrat = fafraem

S 1 I T 2006-07 H AT 3T
et faed & 9 & T I erdr &
feeror A e STaT © -

1999- 2000- 2001- 2002- 2003- 2004- 2005- 2006-

00 01 02 03 04

05 06 07

T % A YR SR #F T 5.671.60 FA ¥UC T TE o, g fgawo frefataa

i I femr T :-
AfeTaRT 7.1 - 30 T, 2007 hT TUTE qY o oI T T Hed VAW (775 097 &)

() qAfdw dfaawor 2003-04 | 2004-05 | 2005-06 | 2006-07 G
T o
%. S 3252.89 | 806224 | 563239 | 5500.00 | 32174.10
9. IRASHY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 245.79
Y- 3252.89 | 8062.24 | 5632.39 | 5500.00 | 32419.89

(@) v faw
T Hiaeor 44.49 27.16 | 364.56 171.60 |  949.26

Tl UG (H+) 3297.38 | 8089.40

5996.95 5671.60 | 27697.55
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7.2 YA e

Y 2006-07 F T, FA 5500 FS T N YA el Heaad 2 7T o, f5aw 125 Fs TS
3TCTETY AT & ST e faed Hufar & faw faaftd fee e o | gafde arem (62D & onie
feredr Serrar &l faaor Tor 79 TR © -

Arfetent 7.2 - TrAfieh HUTEMT ST o Tafir=r v sl diaawor

I T 9T YT (S HUTH)
3Tay faed wafar 1085
37T faed Hufar & foae
3TqTafy Ferdr 125
EED 4280
e 8 10
Hel Giqaur 5500
Y 2005-06 % T ST STardr f=feigd o= & :-
yafde Tfaaior st a-ar dfgawon
T (HUS TUTH)
m 29 facd Fufar
CEEERIERERER
3 fore facdg
el dl
O %
O Feail 98I
qrieh YAfdw Wiaawur (1999-2007)
Hfgawor
9000
8000
7000
s
2000
3000
2000
1000 -
0 i
SIECIN S S C PRI I
&F (1900 q/QQ\ (196‘/ & q?d" (190"-’ @Q@
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7.3
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USTEAT UTH0T SAET faet A1 o
Tere

AT STELAl & GHEE & fa ror er
&q MRE & yare @ giaurse a- §d,
e ol ST T SE faed A %
3T YTIfies SEOTETdT ST Bl Ferdar ST
TEIY | T8 ASHT 1997 H S7arE widfafay
& Goaefref geey &1 T off | 9y & A
(STt & BEHT) 5375 FAS TIC
ST 30 7€ e SATafeiens AT H o, Fd 2530

FUS TUT H 47.07% U STl TTHI00
arg facd IS & S U eE o
I FEOTETT FXHT BT fT TE Fon &
ey § S fmar e o | s e &
I S F Ffaawo ¥ Fa dfgdwon F
78.26% 1 @ < ST IS & 3EH
SNTAT fredt -l T Siaawor fot Wiaazon
F 21.54% o7 | ASH & A fFe T
' [ ST rafeTSe faa¥or 997 e Y
g -

WUISEHAT UTHIT STET Tt TS & S S9-a1 Fiagaor

m AT
|\aca

"o
O Fehrl

EEED
HEIH

TN SR % ERT A JI9T F FEIITR [ ' AeifyT YR % ded A ©F s
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7.4

LIECISEIRC)

7.4.1 9% & SH, 9 T GES4E G AT

faerg mifueeon & fafi= YR &1 eardra
gferSTT el & fore faedia geradr geq
T | reSIe e Yo & Afafad,
S T GEST & offd ®T ¥ HHSAIL G
STET L B F oA TT-TRehmT Hrer
37 safte fored et & off faedia ergan
T H |

7.4.2 Yood Toge fqcd T faer e g 4 2 -

7.5

T T AT ok hl A (Sferael) ANTERT
T, HFHATCHE GHEA & TG H, AL A6

S 9 E foacd SUREn, ST B
fafde, T8 (SHemes) wee fafes iix
¥z §% o we g fafges o g (sfdn)
TG TEAT® | S dFT 31er faed shufr
T e 30.06.2007 FH HH AT & HoA
16.17 FUE TUC 7 | S TN F o A T T
e (SfeFadT) 9rierT T8 or |

ATMeTehT 7.4 - U Taed Giaaut st Taawor

¥ 2006-07 F A 30 S, 2006 T T
(T TC ) (T TC ) (FE FTCH) | (Fg T H)
=T ffy 558.74 155.00 2234.18 771.47
foomy fafy 2.08 16.60 292.99 177.79
AT 560.82 171.60 2527.17 949.26
743 SR T AY NS & A Fd TR a8, AT HEET 2006-07

7.4.4

3GF G, S A9 59 €, & 51 750
AP S & a9 5.25 HUS T & faeda
TRl WS &l | I8 TS R &l 3719 o
TG & Ifd OF Ted © |

S TS % THUCSIRE (W) & 9T RTEr
T ST TS o JAaTY oh TS T GRATSHT
fopenfad &2 T & | 59 wRas i s
Tee] 7% © foh Feor A Wi fa o U s
fereprey STfemrRT &1 R o TR © | S
1 Tt ST TS Yar Wifeeneor 3T
Fel o el & FedT ¥ T &L forar 1o
T 3R TS 7 Loy ot 97 147 TRERt
I o T 91 feemn T © | A gAiar § 9
oryd gE-giamd, S f Stargfd, e,

9=TeTd, S o & TR © |

U 9 & S, (SRATTT F:T Jaee
qfed) & qa Ay &l U 183.61 F#US
wqQ ol Sdfh geaH oY H U8 138.26
S TAC S 175 of, 5T fF 33% &1 gfs
TS HLAT T | HUIGT AT 114.43 FS
T fIHIAT T el G T 9% & S
7T 86.39 HAUS TUC (el o | U
AT T AT H 32% HT IfE <t & TR ©
| T T gfe & gRumEEd, 9§ 2006-
07 & XM 19.20% & HHE 22.5% @
T ol | emfad T @1 ey gAtHasT
o 1 W@ d R A 1729.40 s ¥T
T 1829.19 FUE TYT & gf& FT 3T o
T e |
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AT gL
e

TTAIOT SA7aTE fae shaf-ar O | (Sfaaer)
R

LT A S T 37 36T faed wufar 4
T Sl (SfFaan) o R S & O AT
TR F T S g ©T T U7 A& HO
T M Hi=d H T | T8 YHT A
T & fore FRel & JaTe & THH o T
3R Sk bl G TeHe e O T % &Y
T2 | dF < O TdqEr H GF T
T & o JH T |

i fam

qaTsT & Qfad T st fad atf & fae
AMFT F YEEH T AT AT FR0 P
TR0 FIT §U, oF T ffw w9 F
FHS/fE e vt #r ufErsEen 1w
A o < & foAe o afersrr faed
Sfq genfrd &1 1| d& T 3T TrEwr e
5= o &1 9% &1 wag ©, 7 fafae
BEANY W U Hecaqul fHel 37 d3H &
fera ‘aramg =afte faea’ fauffea fear @
39T ¢ IfssiicT Mmag # gredfed &3
S B et w7 T afEry & e
T | ST e A1 T I=d oS
ATETY 0T ST YL rAfoTd sl @l
T T & faw i R (If9-3m)
%07 37fE F 3T § et ST ek T
& W 37T I ufary &l SrueTell &
T FH F AT F T@E

fafraw= e wragur
aT fawt Sy et SireRT

10.2

STT 6 1A, 2007 & oA H, T A
S srfafrad, 1987 &1 9T 29T & 3T
T AME S T TSIHT01 & GH0T-T
U ATl AT faed Hufar &1 FeT G
42 o 3 S0 G 20 377ery facd sufar
T ST I STHITT TR HE &l ST
off | o & <, 4 ey fored &ufaar &1
fET 7T TSiieor & JHI-95 TE % fau T
|

SUHTSIT hT TETEHAT

3T fared & & B TTeds Feqor 3T feren
FT 3T S & o, I ey d 7
Y HeH 33T & T 3 foca & a3 o
FTATT ey facd &ufal T 9 &
T G T 2fud s ° TEssr U8
T ST I O W fafqams e o
foefd o7 ST | H9 & YEaiad 3599
frfafed € :-

F. oMM faca AT & U= & 94
A W Io9 FEEIE A fqus
e bl GTCHRe AT 37 ST T |

d. Halr('d*-l SIS O?‘Id‘él{:‘}ﬁ_{wm
W GEHRGA 1 G 3T -
FAT |

. YT S SRS 3 AT & S Wa

gt T Scaialdl & ®7 H 3Eg
#EUIQICII\‘:ﬁ_Gﬁ l4|r\<<’lll\fl'1| @ﬁ |

q. 39 FGeR el Ued gar ¥ oY
33T

T eI YT 6 AEH-TEH 37 U
UG ATHEST AR & T T 9MreA
T8 % FdX FE HL |

. AW faed & 9 R T O9EER,
fafrmet & qrer == e |
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10.3

T, UH 3G UG Gehoddral &1 Y A faed
S & YrHor 31T fasrg &r
S EEISEEACEIC Il

I, R T T Ued G, facde fern
forerar i urefefar & faw a
Y §F F TAGT H IGH FErr
Exel

39 Yo ¥ U gHIfTd Td s Hd JaAredh
® TF GO YR w7 AT gEraen
T, ST STaT %01 S[a, 3MaTd 07 &
A1 33 & fafig— arvereif % wrar <o
Sl e aay facd HufEr ¥ 3ucre
faf=r ameme =7 =rsTen &t favry
faoreremen & fafearef wx 3fea <
IEIIIE SIS 3T HUeH | afs
ST U7 =TS, o O 39gad TR & I
T JEATfad sos el ¥ 88 qrfes=
N T 33T Gha T |

ITTa AdE Hfear

TG IR T 3cdd Hae & [T, TS 3ar
S T aarg facd sutar & faw s
RS . SO (TS ) /SRR ed/ el e -
16/2006 f&T® 05 faawT, 2006 9 3fad
FraeR Hfear W faen-fEer S e €
Gfedr o UTesl & 91 e d 3 H 6T
faca sufmar & fae g9 faffa =
3o HaeR & Galq fmar mar © | wfear
T geca¥ IERTdr a9 & foe yam fFan
T © Y {6 srrar foed Safaar & uredht
& 59 Y H Ted GHERR] o & o 3c7S
Te YIS F ST I T AT 39N T
Fha & | 37 feon-fe el & emeR W, ser
faca Sufgar T -3 v 4sa &
AT § 3T AIER Hiear oA #
T 31T Tfgar I 37aT UMewl &1 Ygiaen &
fere ayodt wmarey 7 yefefa e 7

104 TET MG Seh i T T S0 Tgeh

10.5

& AT ¥ Tt feyn-frdeit e @
g T 9 T T Ueh & SUMET U &
TS TE

‘ST UTeeh &l ST Hdl AHST 37T el
O B Y I F Tk & TR T SA1E
fored ufTar i arder, 2006 A ST faeqa
feem-fen & S B W, Frer g T 9y
T F AT G ST, 2002 F TR,
e faed Fufar & gfaeeT yomerr &
ffam &7 33 a9 o fezm o o | 72 faed
YA TS - TG (THIAET-TS) F 30T
% 3T 3MTaTy fored Fufar & |rer wmsf
T 1 T ol S T yfdqereT gomel W feer-
frer S[emE, 2006 3T fgawR, 2006 F
ST fRT o |

T AT I T facd ST s -
IRA (TRIEIAISE) & FaUYS3 il 3™
feree U= & Jrer glaen % fore 3T Fwdy
Tferey o I Gaferd Gifafess gfqaeT gomer
F FOR fparaaT & fae 3% v ofix
WW%WﬁlSW 2006 FT
STTere ¥ e faed Ul % e siffar
F OF 3% o I’MET H | TS JOUA
TR o T ®

A faet hufEr st wageT

¥ 2006-07 F M, S T AT G o6
AT, 1987 T 91T 34 & 3T 20 M9
faed Sufqar a1 fafrme femr = |

% T A 3 fac HufEr F faes U
AT S AR, 1987 & 917 330(1) &
I T RS o T F | §F T O
Y facd U & faes 1.am.d% sy
FT R 49 & IR ol wrefatedr qeey
T
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10.6 3T fafames wrfaentoT & T qa<d

U 37E o T qar fsd o & b
FrITTAr H e T T ol qH-=a it
3% F AT ¥ 3 fafrres wifgemo
& T AT 3 Ui ST | gfqenfmr
T R e S, gier fawm & gfaffy,
T, faca, fafy, enfie eroay @e Haremi/
U TSiEen, SOl Af dre, R gfagfa
wg fafg 91, T/aET WX I 9
G SIRETHY G, St farm § st
A E |

¥ 2006-07 F SH, T N6 d 7
5T T F GH= Gfaqar & 11 dedr &
a7 o s o adg fiod § & fafa=
e Pt 7 gE o |

10.7 Wifafiren faawforat s wet & e ¥

TR HET

AU Hall el HaeX gHread &,
Tl AT &l o 33, G&, T
I Feafsar & gry gaear fFe fom
ST ST g F fQ, 5% T o L
frerar wonedr fepenfara @ @, R e
fered &afar, S1h, He, T, et & A
¥ foaeiU@r g&qd HTT @ JUTell S5 R
T & WA Y faaforr Tega wY Fhell
g | ey faed Sy s fgerfrr yeqa
LT o I YUl 01 Sals, 2007 &
R G T | T WO F IR
I 3T 3feses e & T ® | faeefoRr
F1 TEAEIAd T 01 s, 2007 ¥
JET T |

10.7 SITETT AT &qH1 (W37 d) [H9T, 2001 7 Gone

1. 3aN facq &uar & 3T § Qe SHRIREl # @iefd - =Faq Faer 9o
(Te) Frafwor AET) sifqart 29 fgame, 2006 ¥ #E o @9 focd & O9 &

el SIS TR 37l 3T T Taf &L Fohdl o9 dd 6 mag facd
HIA AT TR SR % foaw ergmifed frafor (AT wfeen (frfaa,
YR {7, deeE wd g fdw sfear (o) . 7 9 frell v 9 =aw e
o (Y=) fior M) o F& = A |

2. TR-3E FON, ST AME SR W §, H FA S AT F 0.4% F GHERT T
AT faea Hufar o Ffora fFar T € 7 9 31 A, 2007 1 fAEE & gRe AR
femfear &, TR-3mary o, ST A R o €, & Hed I T & 0.4% F T
T grag FT = e § &l -

F. 31§, 2007 9% 0.1 yfaerd

Q. 30 S, 2007 TF 0.2 Grerd

T 30 =T, 2007 d& 0.3 3faerd
y, 31 fegwEe, 2007 9% 0.4 Giaerd

contd....
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T Ma S i, 1987 F1 gRT 296 F 3U-a=GET (1) U5 (2) F IR ST
AT ¥ fafera enfear W 9o g fAfdd

13 310, 2007 ¥ a9 faed SO (TMSH) FEw, 2001 F EAF-11 - a0
SIS i Wipfd, S e-14 & & U 747 A e-14¢ ffaw fmar wr 7, foge
gt ST WH/ER0 X Ta g4 e facd &uf @ & fae Idm emerg
S erffEm, 1987 T GRT 2047 F ST-ARET (1) U9 (2) F YR 395 5N Faferd
TN T U SHHAIS & U T g9 AT s oavas ©

200 ARG FAC & =[ATH Mol w@ifhd M

T 3aE o T 7R o o1arg facd e, S & @ U €, ST 31§, 2008
3TTAT SO UE T A o WX SR FAT ®, F o A FHS T =
frae @rfuma ff @ 8 faffds fear

3:'7&:"
3y Fmfor Fufeq & e 3T gt 9 W sifawan F I § g ol

A SR Tfad FRrr afafa T S/ faede Teemt 31 ol § dohret SIarerre Hfaas
e ST PR © 1 5 T oar faed it i T rgurere uikeniid fmer e e

11. WU AT T ey fae e ST 751 & siebl 31T el &7 o Gemr
AR F AeY ¥ GpAfad @S @R | U
AT o R SR § S gos
11.1 a0 S ST STaTey foreet AemT a7 ST e FEVTETCT FeT o fore afefes ereer foeret
¥ 1997-98 ¥ 39 sfic { fogam T o f FIA T |
I & 7 T e WA F A MA ATy 5 g o F A ol oA faed SRR
& i 3 U5 dea of 9h | 59 A o %1 3T & 3,30,000 TR H T F GEET
T ST T F A S e e s FeT 2,98,425 THEAT T fae o fopam T
swiqriaﬁrwqw%’la‘s'?ﬂwﬁﬁmym o | 351 ot o e SR i ST
O XA 37T ST faed Shafar, T T Y
ATfeTeRT 11.1 - TUT AT UTHIOT 3TETE o DHT - UTaiiTeh FUTSHT ST ot e
(ST FHETT)
T gt Pllin)
2005-06 2006-07 2005-06 2006-07
f1.fa Fufar 82,500 94,200 63,938 56,011
e AT F d 1,92,500 2,35,800 2,29.713 242,415
AT 2,75,000 3,30,000 2,98,651 2,98,426
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11.3 0T S UTHI0T STEr faet ST o S TEAT B faequitd e T ' S 103
et e gfqerd Foure & e fHerdr € | 59 A

11.3.1 1997-2007 &I 3@ T 19.30 ARG 3{&EEG & 3 fafi= el o gt e f g <@
RN F AT F GHEA FA 19.42 A T -

ATfeTeRT 11.2 - TUT T UTHIOT SETE Tt ToMT & € ay-ar WoTfa
(1T FHE F &)
o ol I T (g HUT W)
1997-1998 50,000 51,272(102%) A TE
1998-1999 1,00,000 1,25,731(125%) A TEY
1999-2000 1,25,000 1,41,363(113%) A TE
2000-2001 1,50,000 1,58,426(105%) A TE
2001-2002 1,75,000 1,87,268(107%) 3246.03
2002-2003 2,25,000 1,78,200(79% ) 3816.34
2003-2004 2,50,000 2,43,753(97%) 6353.82
2004-2005 2,50,000 2,58,562(103% ) 6440.95
2005-2006 2,75,000 2,98,651(109% ) 8367.87
2006-2007 3,30,000 2,98,426(90%) 7664.58
TAT 1997-2007 1,930,000 1,941,652(100.6% )

ST Te - FHEF Y [RT 7T JjFg Fiftd F YT @9 &

@I @ 11.1 - @UT TR THOT A T TS o S T U i
Ul ST AT STTaT Tae et ek 3w e

300,000 =— 10000
250,000 /74’// 8000
igg’ggg // [ 6000
100,000 = - 1 4000
50,000 v + 2000

0 0
—— Y

RS IR NN AENCIRN NSNS\
NI F I fer (g Tgw )
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11.3.239 TS & 374 el & Tghardd e

12.

12.1

12.2

gfig < F &H H TEd T a9 2007-08 &
3 3,30,000 SR ST I faredaifird
T T O . Id fmar | T ey
S F AT Y T dB & AT T w1 A
S Giafa & S8 59 5 el ¥ A
F IR AT @S |

EICItRERISER I C T e
fefatert

AETEET Y hel

S T a0 T 1 TE el F 9% i

arg faed FHuEr T PR THEd & &
foTT T Grame] gauT er wfud R |
TS Yae HeT T ME HON W TR
qrEmeS] & d) § IMag facq dufar ¥
SR T T 31X 39k Qe STaH-TaH
AT S W@ | 59 3299 & ufd, o
I T AT R FRaE 39afeia
3 5T fafd €7 § oo s #ar ©
QY 3arg facd Fua I T R Y
METIF T FY 3T Gr@EEyol e
I HSART § 999 & foe ware feEe
SUNTeRT I 91e Ud SHen! ToreREar &
A & WEAw ¥ faehen Tiatatedt

3TETE &1 o FgHE! (9 & Ui & aed
TE, TSI A §F A fed I 7
TRHSTSIRT 31T 9o gfs & favg w aRde
fisd §% & g9 f&dq #Lar ® 1 39 999,
aag facd & &3 U faveqde S &
3G & FIR, A facd S o gd9M
feerfe &1 Mo faweisor 2 H3T & |
faed & ¥ Gafud S & 9% 39 Ud
fToaEr 3fieT STUR AN ST 3T &)
STEYd © ST 37O SI9R % R H SEd
S fowfaa 9 H e & g

12.3

T UK A dF T T faEeHs
Ted & fore grefaedet & eEr o fifa
FIAT € 3T T SAH AT OTCAT S
ofq e HLAT L& © ST 3TE faed e i
FETT G ST T TR g S,
ST YT ST ST 3T ST | e
QT SFl 1 Jgfae & o sTa! MeH-
T AT |

U R ST G @ & U
AT S o S T HIEd B UGG &
T | U SErg S STt o @ ey
fored afTar & fere faer S (Te) fafzor
() M=UE S T OSYAT, 3AF BN
TR T ST & e weh 3fere 2o dfedr
e & N H qH T | S GaATed
TR % &Y H, T N6 S ey faed
FUfar & 9o safeaar ¥ fiyet fBmmmdr &
F GEE LA | Fewrre ST T2 S7a
fereet it 1 3T ¥ Wigd SHET 3T
T 3R F Yood 0N F Gafyd ol ¥ |

Ma fam shufEr & T S
SfaRTEr T qrasieh &9 & deht &
I & T a3k

SH AN U, AR fqed Al & T FRe®
IR & T & 3% T2 feeet o emafsa
FIE of | T 3, 1 gead (Faw)
U F0T, o fmramett @& fafor (fEm),
HUIET F A § faarier wegd ST Sy
foer $ T g7 & 59 W S 7 faaR-
fomst fopam o e | Tl ST T e
fered ST & S Sarg foed Hufar ST
e 5T frsare 3 o 2007-08 F faw 49
AT B TIIO o S T R T o |
= GAFR & farg X fqer-faasf # &
fore 1T ey % T SmE faed SufEr
3T B P T TFT S o S |
gfqafrar 3 yeafad gRa Sus Forerar 59
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12.4

26

TNfYd &, JHITT Sd s §ed JoAehil &
i, S faed @ amed ¥ g #,
AN facd SR # S@Eegu o e &
ST 3 39T S fawar oX fqam-famef fmm

AT & ¥ Hueh

T ay o, 9% T 3faie FemaRl 7 aar
T F e = faid sifyyeon &
fErSTSI=IeT 1 I TR | 9N & <, S 7
dFaT, FE | A faed & foe sfais ™
[ T 267 fored g H 9 o | Sar
e 91 oA A @ fed B Y
T, I, AFR T R F 95T
T ST & T T ST (72d%) &
fIT O 318 ToH T | §F 7 99F F=0
ST T YR < F ga9F ddd o afasy 7
T 9 3T WA & S GedT & G9E &
TR H AN ST # |

el T YEY ST H sea Hifq ud
foeprae TR faa 3TN (I HHRE) & 3T
T AT Hrfenen § o UHfere & &9
I o & e e fowar e o |

T - Uit e T g,
2006 FT 7T fooell H 53T o1 | T 37a™
S T 5 T B 9l 9 F 9 for o
g & foe gryefarTs eame . o U
T o

Te-MASd o | 39 SfedT T s T8
eI ¥ 95d ¥ YR AF T 9Rd &
M faed gomen ¥ w4 <ol of | dF 7
AT & T 9T & €9 T AT gagir
T Sl 37T SEITAS AT o | S & T
T 9 G B TR SR et yfaffrEr
I T 2 |

S T fETgR 7 faawr, 2006 ARSI
fered T &1 aiftfers Sa o T foram | 55
T e, S T AR faed f9 & FeasH

T fova S TE S RS TR H S
(i) gfqasT (Fearfdm) yonferar (fawemy)
T AET e B o o ferar o | d9 T
aferor 3T cfqor-qd wferr F I A A
foet 1 O R 3T i & o T
F G F T T W KRN R ¥ |

125 TER ¥ Gueh

S T el ST Sidsar 7 s
SO I 39Xl ggfeaar’; “9T T,
IRl I faeIy &9 Sfsd” fava = geT
RIS R | S8 I gren i S,
e T SHE, 2007 F G SrefAfamE
gfffd 1 e o grafera far or | aEr
TN | 3 U9 Yoy feves 7 gfaaimr
T grafad R ST 3% Sary Ud Say
faed &3 o TaHaH SETRAT F GoT T 31aTTd
FAT |

T AT T ST g 3T & I
Sl T OF I U 6 G S 7]
Teqifed T & foe T 21 S T 02
fFemsz, 2006 T STce 7 afeor S &
T St T O G ST R e |
gfqufira 7 <ferol & % 15 QT IrEr SRt
& TR/ 31T ST &7 & ST
aF & s AR e § | e o
UL AEY b 3T &1 T o & fHeame
T T I TSN T A AT T ey 3T
= faf e & Arem ¥ U1 S S ol
8T T S YT Sard uiErseit
I FfET FF o 9T A

12.6 Taga wataw faaw, 2006

foreg Tafarg fea, 2006 & T W, % 7
fava Tafa feag, 2006 & fava @1 sfic T
frfafad favar 92 o fray gfaenfirar sifva
1 oy fSrerr ot fawe f1 9 § o ' -
TS &l Topeor': -
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12.1

WORL
3rd

S Shl

p HABITAT DA)

October 2006, New D'

il I T vd RN T SuREA m\,g R
n Poverty All

A o
il < df
iﬁ & I-Ilmstry ot}% sing an Q

i PANKA

OINT, SEEHETAH\' (HOUSING)
»

fava gfarg feag -

KUMARI SELJA i

HONBLE MINISTER OF STATE (I C)

{ i\ ‘_,u"_,
b\t M p i w

ZOOWWWWW%?W#WW 7T T

(7T T9R), G TG TRIa] 3HTT TATT TG 4 TF SR, T TF J7Y a9
T ST 3 - [T T [ 7 R # T # 5T

F.  eRA v onfye vl e v e 13, gwar fAwtor

il

T, el e & faw gfy @ safy ofiT
T L i 1 FEy/39gEd 39T

g YAt W g S, faci 9enT,
T MY S T Goighd 26 o
3R AL A Sobr o Fl o=
f et o | WicatiTar & 9T guei fier
3 e &1 faye-aq 3R e faaRiades
g FEE W © | (g % fasrani @1 o1
3FERIET, 2007 H BT favd wHiarT fead, 2007
& YARIE T e & TE o |

YT T SR ST, 2005

o H SRR SAAEE, 2005, ST (13
FIAT, 2005 T TN T3 &AT) T YR,
T Tk JIEHOT 6 &Y F Sk A B G
TeH 3 % fore o € | sifefem i e
% AR SF T HE S YT IR
Y T uh A fufed R 7

13.1

13.2

e faed & T &ar i & O 3U &
BT W, I &5 & FfHa & A9 e facd
g gafud favar o fafi=r ufswemor sriEn
AT FAT S | STy |, S 7 3113 e
FEAHA SRNST 7T ® | 57 gferern sriear
¥ fafi=T ST sl oM facd &ufr,
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30.06.2007 % GId T HT TR STIHT 107.15
e 3T HiT foheq 3diet o fommreie 72.23
AT () 395.54
A GodT (foRam T yreEe)
30.06.2007 & 3K & A< Jaem 277.28
AT AT, 1961 3 &1 36(1)(viii) & 3 a9y
fer ffr & foae e smefita we-sTar 76.06
T (@) 353.34
SATREER TSN (T)=(Hh)-(E) 42.20
20. I hT 20.2 30 S, 2007 TF §F T 76.06 FAS TIC I
(Fraen) 3T % S9a &7 3ifvere fFar
20.1 WHY F AT F L IO SR T 3 T 5 qom-93 o <o T e
%W?T;rwaﬁﬁmlﬁr S 203 S & S, 9 T SR SR, 1961
S A R B T B AT A %@ﬁ*i?ﬁmmﬁﬁg
e T ST € | STeifiTd ¢ s a9 L= 7871 S
T T A . 9 T 6 T S 76.06@36@%2.65@36@@?@
fafeaaare 78 © & qaf a6 we-ary ey I SR F7- ;.f Gl SR T
|
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20.4 Y@ WEr T RART hi-Nfear iR SeiEr s dues fraferad € :-

T (FIS THTH)
w4, | faawor 30.06.2006 | 30.06.2007
ST T ST
1 3YEH (U=AN) 3T AR TRUF F I Jae 0.52 0.82
2. arfraw AfeRfar &1 fafhcdr e 0.15 0.16
3. T Yk & e graem 0.29 0.35
Pl ST F SRAT (%) 0.96 1.33
NI LT
1. TR 0.91 1.05
2. MR AT, 1961 F & 36(1)(viii)
& M foory smfera ffyr 78.76 76.34
T SIIIIT FHE-ZTT (G) 79.67 77.39
Traet smafia we-egar 2wl (T-) 78.71 76.06
1. WW'@'HT'&IW 214 FR Ffdw e SR et are
21.1 TSI YA S #7131 Y 7% 0 @Il AT ﬁ?@ﬂ?—ﬂiﬁlﬂ;ﬁmwﬁﬁ%l
01 T, 1989 T S W H gRe € oy 210 ggw F ST - 791 31.03.2007
3T s e ggfad St qor sar /SR fer T ST Tl 5 14.02
foret St 3 A T AT T O | TR W IS T A A Je-u § Jhe A T
BT ASHT 01 T, 2004 T 8 HT & TE | ?ﬁﬁéﬁ/mﬁﬁa;q o feafed
212 9 A F M, SH/erEd fad FufEr & . . L .
oI & 3 o 3 fere SR SRR 210 Wﬁﬁmm‘gm@@%a
GUEd o & | s T8 07 Wi A $ ; HEE I O a;]‘s'azww
ST 3/ o R 3 S T ST SRR 2T e e e
R S @ AT o, ot ¥ SRR fert el 5 & o o, 1 T o 4
mmhﬁ%uﬁm@waméwﬁwﬁaﬁrﬁr T 39F g 3 T TR faaT geHer &
e N i FT 01.10.1994 I T F07 Gral AT &
21.3 6 ST S /3Ta fa &t i 7 fawed ¥ T 2 3 A T S A @
1 o FEC © R T A A S s T T 2 T T T %
Wﬁﬁ@m@ﬁmmé&ﬁ ST 7 | S T T8 07 WIa ATSHT & 3T
H &
3 U U F T | T JRR H, AT A W%wgﬁﬁmﬁmﬁwﬁ
AR ST S A w0 S s YfTeRT T 3 et 1 SFAe o
ARG S I R T A S/emaE
1 8 ¢ STAIfET foRanfafy & STEIR, 0.24 FUS ¥
forg Ut ST Tk R T T Afer T & fcar & @ # G 30.06.2007 T
T T S S SR G T T T T AT BT 0.25 TS TUT FH I
&1 STl £ 31 $afeqe 7 T S o5 T AT 30.06.2007 % TeT T |
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22. @9 - iR

ST Rl AT T, ST @ “euR & o i, “fagened Sudie” i “aRueddr & fore aifid” |

T fquisid e srar & | e e R g e -

T (FF TG H)
Traor @1 ot (ST AT AR I I
T W ¥ W 91 60 §) W A 30.06.2006 ST |30.06.2007 T
Rgad & fae et | & IR SR &l e gfayfaar 1.85 1.90
. ol =, e .e.Se =
T, % U9 g THO-TE A e 1.18 0.83
T T Sy 40.00 45.00
q. 4.90 4.90
IO 47.93 52.63
faspamel 3ucTsy F. IS el il IS 370.60 229.80
T, a9 o GRE F ©iF 5.80 5.80
IT-AT 376.40 235.60
IJrT 424.33 288.23
23. WiUEEl (Yeish yoeh) o faq, 24, Swfar &l i
AT S 7 orEiRT (Tug-28) H gHEE SR
T 30.06.2007 F FHAT 3517.02 FAS TS F e fFeifRa T AT | TTAR, F7E g
T I qEad 9 3R A 9 F qHm & T e T |
foefar & ofa T ararg S & 3ur & i
HEH & F w A PR A W@ W 25, WHeR SNEAr & feTu yrag
T T Tl FUI-T % ®  Siie-yfaygfaar
T gufafd o ST smevee &, S i gefd U 3E S JragH el & e
I I F 3o § R A geiE e T fid o % ol S e R W '
3t 1899 97 €T 8T IHI, FrfH-ar | 7T SATETY S T 3R < 9ot 3R g
TR 21 I 3T T F SIS 8 HadT e TR % fre JRer fosrd o & s
fea ST | et 5 fafies Sl o STIHI, 14.46 2005-06/227 feAifRd 02 EET, 2005 &
FUg e (S gaaq ¥R & T 13.11 ITH 0.40 TA9Td & & § O SRar
TS TIC NS &) & T Y ol st W gy [ e | 9RaE fod Se T e &
T =i T & i AT T ©, ST guiad T gl o St o R e fafue

TGS o ST |

UROEN & TER 20 TG ¥IE ¥ T 0.40
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26.

27. Tave fafer o= ffr s g

27.1

68

yfaera ¥ 1 gfaera o ReErasi siar o0 &
e ST W Jrae oo fear ® | U
e o T FE rfarad yraw (ufer
rfufafeera T8 & fora © e s fad
S T 3G IR FrTar 3T e W
LA T U HIE GRS S AE R
T, O fodeqm T 3UF & &7 1§, TEH
A S T e SR S (refe ufErsm
fam) & 3/ 568.55 TS TIT & FHAT
FOF I 1 UFAerq I <X F IeuM fm
U 376 S TSI T 2] 31=el
SHH 20 TG T F W YA FHOT T
T 3T0e e T 9aE e 8 &
a1y ol AR T @ T |

UST THET yToeh

H% TR T qdan s § dF A7 AT F
(qreifierall OT &7 H) ST g & gae o
e 37T 1T o YA & MR A ¢ |
3.41 S TG H Tk THH o T HieId e
(39 a9 T 78 TEuM 0.20 FUS TIC 3 o)

P AT T TE AT 3 A1 TR o
T & e TR

U

e S 39 v B2) fufEm, 1991
37 3 9AY I foham T o fof T emar

27.2

28.

o T W1 Y ST ST T arel SAfRdar
TogeT A F AT SFr ST T e v
el & fore goger dl o w2 JaH & ST
| Tfesd ST AT % ST weHEd afer
T ET Y, TS & T 31T AT & T
wd Ta-a% GE & faamone, o faery
fafey o & ST SIS © | TS Say
S (TS GUR U 37T AT A
ffer) faframmae, 1993 & 3HR 30 A &
T Yo 9 oy ffa % ey ¥ IR
eRaIT ST T ST 377y Sk SifafTam, 1987
FT 9T 40(1) & 3T IR e o 31
ST 3T ©

T, faery ffy &1 oy v g9 orar aer
q-T3 59 faxirg fqaull o |ref T 3T er i
IS UL AE §F (T GER o
3T AT ey ff) fafreet, 1993 &
USSR AR e e E | e ffy
T U< 9 U 9% F gufEd qoH-w o
“srfera fafy” o o enfer o E © 1 fa9w
fafey a1 farfir= sfeaar i S o gefd
Nl & M T e ffa I gefra
ST & QT qufehe & T € |

q4: QHgdg h Al

AT AL T Y & Alehe J: FHEaH
fipe e €, o 6 3% =] 99 % Akl
1T T ST ST T |
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29() 30 S, 2007 T T a8 o ToIQ Terdr yarg &1 faawon

(Fg T H)
. UiETe Yee afafey U Tehe) ydtg

Y T B ol & ER fad oy 114.31
AT el IT T T F T qHTE

X foTT TraaM (SRR A Od o & dfed) 69.45
SR T Il (2.65)
TR SRl T STaeam 2.39
T SMREAr 3T s =7 % e graue 16.24
W g4 & foae gaem 2.03
3TPIRT. ST T €T 36(1)(vii¥) F 3 S5 F0 F o< qraw 10.75
SRR ST 3 S AferEr & qAd e T faftme < 7 ofa¥ % For w 6.57
fareT 3T Uftoiem =19 WX srarmem 0.03
AR o AT & | Gl (SfRdD) T AT (0.24)
frrereT fosrg W @ (11.37)
QI o [T s JreagH Tuferd Ter (1.33)
el fafmer eray ¥ ey (1.96)
YT YSI o UREd ¥ Ugel UiEme o 204.22
IV Y BT THTESH

ferer ¥ 3aR-TeE (4.96)
U o THU-TE H A T 3AR-agE 0.36
S0 B SHRIPEN W 3dR-TgE 1144.13
F0 O A H IAR-FEE (3208.31)
3T A H 3dR-=ed 51.17
A A ¥ 3AR-TeE 87.20
F & A ¥ T8 GREme Tiaarar ¥ e T (1726.19)
HIT YA fRIT T 3IRT (75.84)
STHTERUT WaT ¥ Ugel UieEer Tiafatedr ¥ fraet Tad ya@ (&) (1802.03)
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. JMEN U ¥ g (a9r Yy TiafatrEt ¥ faet Tendr

TR Sl o e aieET (0.88)
frerer fahe T @ 11.37
AR fored ufR o | gt (fadl) o¥ e 0.24
SR Hal ¥ Yeel faer 4T nfafafa & 3= fad T 10.73
[EERRILE 0.00
STTENUT Wal & &g Traer T wfafafeat ¥ s faer Fandl (@) 10.73
. Toxirr nifafafemt ¥ Ty yare
FHANT fede@r] AR 7 oam 0.05
ST 3T K T H 3AR-TgE (2382.21)
T & R § 3aR-=g[E 4079.62
ot wifafafeat o s faaet Taar () 1697.46
Tehel UE Tehel auged U fHae gig (h+@+m) (93.84)
e 01 ST, 2006 & el Td Ahal FHGA 391.45
T 30 A, 2007 T T T Tehel AT 297.61
29(@) TAT 30 S, 2007 ThY Tehdl TE Tehdl TAJET i TG
30.06.2007 | 30.06.2006
B bl 0.00 0.00 0.00
T foord 5% 7 9 0.03 0.02 0.01
3 S A T 9 57.66 18.42 39.24
T fafme STa I Syl T8 o 3.55 0.00 3.55
3YATArY & IREe (e (e k) o e 229.80 370.60 (140.80)
AT &% YIS § Ueel el Td el 9aded 291.04 389.04 (98.00)
Y Tl g% el X fafma < § e &1 g 6.57 2.01 4.16
faf < G o S1E Taal T Tl S 297.61 391.45 93.84
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30. AR fiord o & fegn-Fden & egar sifaftea SeeRr

&. gt
F. ST YSil g ST 22.58%
- TJTAT STfRTe OST Aol STt 20.44%
- Y SRR YT Tl ST 2.14%
(P T H)
9. ZI-I1 TS & &Y 5 FH (80/-F7)S YT - FZTIT Joo 400.00
T, SifEw Wit enfeaar
- -1 & 7al IX 8796.97
- -3 I el 7l X 119.40
5. - GorT-UF # ARG YT 9 G Gl (PR
gTiar <Al
TfcgTer)
- g fiord § 100%
W. N TUTEET Td KT HehguT
T et =l v ST & fae e srudrsy sniear @ gferd 0.00%
T, ST FHFT P [Aled SN T AT SN SR F
JIToIT TF T
RUSS gfcgT
3U-HF 0.00 0.00%
gfery 0.00 0.00%
RIS 0.00 0.00%
AT 0.00 0.00%
(FS T T)
B, [ 79 a7 FTC T gl F T
- A SR 16.24
- TR A, 1961 &I 81T 36(1)(vii¥) F EH g F0T 10.75
_ R 0.03
- I T SN Y 69.38
- ST AT (FHae) 0.00
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ST, TFe SV ST H 3AR- T T gL
30/06/2006 | 30/06/2007
- F7 et ST 3 1A A
A FHCIGT & TG H AT HEE F [ T gl | el Skt ST gl
HET TFIGITR TG T SR F [o73 7T T eI T (g | FERT e | enfar
TUU ) UIq9Te | T Uyt
- GEY ST Thdl Jghall 1100.00 54.43% 5.12%
- G 9T JRahd! JT 1302.37 64.44% 6.06%
- 10 T §% el SUREdl 9660.25 477.99% 44.96%
- 10 99Y 9% SRl U@ 3843.53 190.18% 17.89%
@ TIIF & JF FacT 4 FIRFA JT &
(FUS T H)
I, FHT FT ST & T T T T8 G /32N % o7 | hel Gehtdl | el dehtdl
hied THITTSIT HUT | KUTRT %
- ST Ao S 13815.00 70.59%
- 31Ty ford ufar 4799.58 24.52%
- Y157 % TR N 0T ferehrg Sy 9f o 9 198.08 1.01%
- 3NTATY SIS /T TR0 171.38 0.88%
- e ey for wfafaar 150.24 0.77%
. A
T, TYT SR AR Soarsl &1 ufudar wsfd
3. 3MRETT T <Al 1 gfTerer gl
(Fg FIC )
e 1w | 1T | 39 saf 7Y AT
M1adw | otk fohg | orftres g | orftres fog | otferem
&R 3addas | sadde | AN Aaw
QAT AT 8,928.58 7,840.42 3,209.60 982.63 3,275.45 24,236.68
oot =1 snfiear 36.71 73.69 74.10 74.58 316.16 575.24
Egyl snfeat 8,965.29 7,914.11 3,283.70 1,057.21 3,591.61 24,811.92
YT <A 13,253.81 6,907.63 2,172.48 875.21 696.16 23,905.29
ferofr g7 <=rare 41.27 82.79 83.40 84.03 377.80 669.29
Eﬁ?w 13,295.08 6,990.42 2,255.88 959.24 1,073.96 | 24,574.58
QT (4329.79) 923.69 1027.82 97.97 2517.65 231.34
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Y. UiareH degl aiumy
T AT A e % ueh ufqerd & 9 T = 3 6.74%
3. olad FEie [ % o ufaerd & €9 § IR-SAIT S 0.08%
. Sid FE e Y & o 9faere % ®9 5 9iEe oy 1.00%
q.  ofrad it W it 0.54%
o,  gfd FHARI faet oy (Fg FaC H) 1.59

(*) TR 3171 7 FreIeT fafie R o1, TS ohl QrsiehT 3T SFIawadh ST =7 S STRfTd 2 INfiel T8 ¢ |

g UEEEr U Sar-eE

1. 3FTIIST SIRTIN % [o78 T (H17 SRl G JeiT F SI5hY) 598 S 3T S a?-Fu
STHT & JFIT H FT, JYIT TF FU-77 IATE

Tfer (Fg

&g W)

&. ford o & gy I e7fe oI 27.44

SN : & & A oS T Jree 0.00

TS : AT TadH 1 Tg QT ST, T hd HE] 0.34

Q. 9y 3 H sfaery 27.10
Il e I e & e yaem

T 99 & IR e 9 0.60

IS i) 9 o AR RS T g 0.00

i) oo fafam, A arE €, o & < sifer smferd orar 0.00

HAC) 9y & S 951 @rdl 0.07

ii) ST fgreT aYferd o  3feRy, A HIE § 0.00

7. fodad & ofa o sfaom 0.53

o, QA G o
F. U SREAAT &l Foe AT B
9. 3U-AHS /iy e NIt

B. WiaWfehTur hu=1/ga{-uTur Shu=T <hl Sl 7T SnTfaat I
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. QS HIR UE & g1 faf oy sxawen CRERTER:D
&. Tl Sewen SO & S Joed 1,000.00
T, fafma a1 yEfq od o s fafr
TS &%
T feery
T e IREH Nil
q. 3T Sfee Nil
T R SIREH T GeheU] 5.07
o, g faf e e & 3 gl (1.18)
(&7 T FHIT)
#. A AN
w4, faaor RUS|
1| o & R (foradt & v ) fore T fafemey i STmfes Yom SR
S AT X N
2| FA130 S, 2007 & (feREal o 7 &) Fewra A 1 SAH-e gorea
NG A S~ TS T RIS
3 (foraal & %9 W) T foh ST FRIRE T [T T SIS
T SIREd Scd~ =] & I
4 (foraal & F9 W) T o SNAF TR el [T bl 2R
S~ AT <X &l ST FSTR I3 I
. T HwOT gfavfaat ¥ fae
. BUTCHATE GIT T A EdAE) & T (FE TIC H)
. Trfrerat Treferiae st T
#. e | PR | R dan | o | s
e arfea gfaegfaat gfegfere
MEIREEL ) L R
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
1 I SIa &7 ok 3THA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 | fo<dg gem 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 | 9% 45.00 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 | ool st 4.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 | Ter/ggEd A 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 | 3 230.63 0.83 0.00 0.00 0.83
7| 3feRE & gfd T T
LIEEIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
AT 280.53 45.83 0.00 0.00 0.83
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g IgyIsT ET (TS FqTH)
fearor Tfer
anfe 91 0.00
af & A ik 0.00
Y % S FH HE 0.00
3fq o 0.00
T W Fd JaEH 0.00
2. OWfehd faxi faawor e e & 7€ SIS 96 &
. GHET G
G, TEidA &l i
3. O T NET T Yehe [T (Fre T7e i)
ES Taraur R EC R =T
. T T
1. | FA (SIFANH Tora @&t )
&.  fceame 0.00 1,000.00
T, e 0.00 0.00
2. | @R @t RafT @ g ferfga
F. A (-) 0.00 0.00
g, oEn (-) 0.00 (1.18)
FUT a5 T IaTor 5.07
T 7 H T TIA9TT GRaAT T GYIiad Tard
(100* Tat1)
%.  GfcLen g1 | 0.00 29.75
g, SN G- W 0.00
5. | @ & G 9T T 100+WaE101 FT &I TE AT
&,  giawen
- 0.00 29.75
- A 0.00 0.00
T, MR T
- fhHaH 0.00 0.00
- AT 0.00 0.00

(TaE ST e JHIore )
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T el fodi Gige o o G faaerama et 9 ¥ o 9 T e, Fet e
Qe HIHCT H YT (A H &l 3T & 0T 8.25 HS TYQ Teh [qaaher o d aer &l G qre el T8 off i

frfra e T e |

T. hHIUE KU YAHEGROT I

ST I T XIV ek oI o 3Tar ArT el e |
TEAH oh T ST 1 | XTV W g&iE
%./-
LRICE
e HelgaHd
%./- %./-
FE FAR A aat
FrTE ST FrfAs e
TregreRToT
/- /-
faremer < .utes 2.0 S
%./- /-
I MO R
%./- /-
e | TG I

2 feed, 22 3T, 2007
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3. TE. TR
/-
3R] T gee e
/- /-
ST St T
/-
Arfe fig

2y gn femien st dore fare & e

GIE G

T./-
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qrER
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qoH-ud
T a R ey @
S T S T
61.82 fare ffer
(A~ GER 3T W AT e fafer) 61.82
e e
26.27 (i) 3T =M, 1961 T &1 36( 1) (viii)
& Ted faery eRfard Al 29.33
3.00 (ii) STereT atferar smfera 3.00
A T BT o
151.89 el ToH-T9 & T8N 9 159.30
7.41 SIS : ol &Y od 9l ofer ¥ Sfafd oy 9.15 168.45
e SeTEt i yraE=
29.49 (i) VTR T T 34.89
0.51 (ii) T ST T Iaee 1.30
3.74 (iif) 3TTRT ST, 1961 I 4R 36(1)(viiT)
& Ted S FUI P WM 0.00
@ (iv) 3= 0.00 40.70
8.84 STRTIT SHT-IAT 9.82
292.97 AT 313.12
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HY AN A e
9T 30 [, 2007 A

LCRLEL] et el
HUE T g &
TR T S 9
0.08 (i) =TT T @
122.25 (i) Pl fereirer Teert 7 grafer ST 37.75 31.75
freroT
(ST &2 T aTi ged 0T, S o 9 2)
21.92 (i) PIgTeT i il Sl 0.00
125.24 U O A 129.23
3 e
3.04 (i) S T RIS T Fge = 2.36
20.21 (ii) AT T, Trel T T AT AR 3T
feranfer &2 #iT, seafe 20.21
0.23 (i) ST 1Y & S e 123.57 146.14
292.97 AT 313.12

@3 0.50 G TIC ¥ FHH
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oY TE g o

LCELEL] g Te] 9
g T HUS FUT
@ 1. T 0.00
0.29 2. HH® AT 1 grEEE 0.79
114 3. 3T AFFEH G 36(1)(viit) & ded S FUIl H JIaEH 0.77
1.19 4. T #X 0.98
4.98 5. 3YTIHL H JIHHH 5.41
10.96 6. Y H AT G 12.21
18.56 AT 20.16
3.55 7. ST AT S AR 36(1)(viii) & d8d
farore smefera fafy o sfqwor 3.06
741 8 OH-TH 3TFM I 9.15
10.96 AT 12.21
@79 0.50 ARG T F &7
®./- s./-
LRIR:CEE) . TH.ITT
TR Helyaesh EEIEEEY
®./- B./- s./-
TEFAR A quf T A
EORICEA RN FrITAS (<o 3T U ey v
TrgreRTor
B./- B./- B./- B./-
farener & .uew EREC RISl Y. 9T ERE R )
B./- B./- B./-
FETHEAT TATT we °e 1. U9 UH.3E rfirare qut
B./- B./-
e | IR R IR e) Arfe fig

7= feeel, 22 3T, 2007
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30 S, 2007 ShT TUTH 99 o ToIq,

LCELEL] 3 Te] aW
HU BT HUS B
1. 0 e S e dF § Iurfer W S 18.68

7.37 &. 0 9 A 8.46

9.26 . d% T Sorifert 10.22
1.93 2. Fours famd wam 1.48
18.56 20.16
1096 3. I A< I A 9 12.21
10.96 12.21

@ @ e fewfurat

1. oo fafa & gor-1F SR oy Td S ora I e S (TE-a%AT GUR SR 5 AT Sa
fafer) fafTem, 1993 F Yrawmr F AR daR fFar T T |

2. S IMEN S (TE-TET GUR 3T FH AT N [ T ey S i Wiz a8 e
(FERT) F IER Fl Ff AT 511 Wiess ©9 F S & TE T F 40 9fqerd @ € |

T feAten ot Gor e & sgan

I @R

3./~

(g o fe)
qriaR
THH.U5.98641

81




¥

National Housing Bank

Annual Report
2006-07

The 19" Annual Report of the National Housing Bank (NHB) submitted in terms of Section 40(5)
of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 for the year July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2007.



T STErE o (4] NATIONAL HOUSING BANK

TOWARDS AFFORDABLE
HousING FOR ALL

than 100 crores. The shortages in habitable conditions have been contributed by many factors —

population growth, increasing nrbanization and rural urban migration, lack of infrastructure,
nuclearisation of families are some of them. As per estimates of the Government of India, based on Census
2001 data, there is an aggregate shortage of 25 million housing units in the country, out of which around
60% is by way of shortages in rural areas.

1 basic human necessity like housing is no less a challenge in India which has a population of more

As per the Government of India estimates for the 11th Five Year Plan 2007-12, the estimated housing
requirement is 73.96 million housing units. Out of this, 47.43 million units of shortage exists in the rural
areas. As per the Government of India, in urban areas, more than 97% of the total housing requirement i.c.
24.7 million units, are required for WS and low income segment housebholds. As per Report of Ministry of
Rural Development, GOIL, more than 90% of the total housing requirement i.e. 42.68 million units are
required for BPL households in the rural areas.

Housing has been one of the focal points of the social welfare policies of the Government. In order to address
the housing requirements of the above scale, the financial outlay during 2007-12 has been estimated at
Rs. 7.5 lakb crore. While the Government’s national housing policy aims at making housing available for all,
with demand growing at nearly two million units a year, this is a challenging task. This can be appreciated
specially in view of the fact that low and moderate income housebolds often struggle to find secure and affordable
housing. Limited supply of residential land has conrtibuted to a situation where land values often outpace the
purchasing power capacity.

The income lemitations affecting the “ability to pay” of some households explain to some extent the lack of
housing facilities in the EWS and the IIG. This highlights the point that has been stressed by policy makers
— providing affordable housing solutions, so that the basic housing and habitat facilities can be addressed
specially for those who have less economic resources.

W hile walking the path towards higher GDP and overall econonzic growth, issues like increasing urbanisation,

rural urban migration and inadequate infrastructure facilities (both in rural and nrban areas) have brought
inadequacies in affordability and access especially for the EWS and LIG groups. It is not just increasing land
costs and costs of construction, but also the perceived higher risk for lending to this sector coupled with higher
interest rates that mafke conditions of acquiring a house less conducive. Affordable Housing for Low Income
Segment Households requires not only Housing but a Complete Habitat Solution for the Commmunity. Lssues
like congestion factors and quality of living conditions will also need attention. NHB has taken up this
challenge and is working towards building np a market based system which will help meet the expectations of
these sections through proper risk mitigating measures under the advice and guidance of the Government and

RBI.
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Management of National Housing Bank

Board of Directors as on October 22, 2007
Under Section 6 of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Section 6(1) (a)
Section 6(1) (b)

Section 6(1) (c)

Section 6(1) (d)

Section 6(1) (e)

Section 6(1) (f)

Shri S. Sridhar, Chairman and Managing Director

Dr. Errol D’'Souza
Professor, Economics Area,
Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad

Shri Vidyadhar K. Phatak
Retd. Principal Chief, Town and Country Planning Division,
Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority

Shri R.V. Shastri
Ex-Chairman & Managing Director, Canara Bank

Ms. Jayshree A. Vyas
Managing Director, Shri Mahila Sewa Sahakari Bank Ltd.

Ms. Shyamala Gopinath
Deputy Governor, Reserve Bank of India

Shri Lakshmi Chand, IAS (Retd.)
Director - Central Board of Directors,
Reserve Bank of India

Dr. H.S. Anand, IAS
Secretary to the Government of India,
Ministry of Housing & Urban Poverty Alleviation

Shri Amitabh Verma, IAS
Joint Secretary to the Government of India,
Ministry of Finance

Ms. Nilam Sawhney, IAS
Joint Secretary to the Government of India,
Ministry of Rural Development

Shri Mohinder Singh, IAS
Principal Secretary to the Government of Uttar Pradesh,
Housing and Urban Planning Department

Shri M.V.PC. Sastry, IAS
Principal Secretary to the Government
of Andhra Pradesh, Housing Department
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Executive Committee of Directors
as on October 22, 2007

Shri S. Sridhar, Chairman
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Shri Lakshmi Chand
Shri Amitabh Verma
Ms. Nilam Sawhney

Shri R.V. Shastri

Audit Committee of the Board
as on October 22, 2007

Shri Lakshmi Chand, Chairman
Ms. Shyamala Gopinath
Shri Amitabh Verma
Ms. Nilam Sawhney
Ms. Jayshree A. Vyas
Shri Vidyadhar K. Phatak
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Risk Management Advisory Committee
as on October 22, 2007

Shri S. Sridhar — Chairman

Shri R. V. Verma

Executive Director

Shri Surindra Kumar
Executive Director

Shri R. Bhalla

General Manager

Shri R. S. Garg

General Manager

Shri R. Rajagopalan

General Manager

Shri V. K. Badami
Deputy General Manager

Shri K. Muralidharan
Deputy General Manager

Prof. S.P. Parashar

Director, Indian Institute of Management, Indore

Dr. Dharmendra Bhandari
Chartered Accountant

Shri PL. Ahuja

General Manager, Risk Management, Oriental Bank of Commerce
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1.
1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

Highlights: 2006-07

Performance Highlights

The total disbursements during the year
amounted to Rs. 5,671.60 crore out of which
refinance disbursements amounted to
Rs.5,500.00 crore. Of the total refinance
disbursements, medium/long term refinance
accounted for Rs.5,375.00 crore (98 per cent)
and Rs 125.00 crore (2 per cent) short term.
Refinance disbursement under Golden Jubilee
Rural Housing Finance Scheme (GJRHFS)
aggregated Rs.2530 crore i.e. 47 per cent of the
medium/long term refinance. Under the Project
Finance (Direct) Programme, disbursements
totalled Rs. 171.60 crore, representing 3 per cent
of total disbursements.

The Bank continues to maintain its track record
of Nil Net NPA.

The short term debt instruments (Commercial
Paper) of the Bank are rated as F1+ (ind) by
Fitch Ratings India Private Limited and as A1+
by ICRA. The long term borrowing programme

A =

1.1.4

1.1.5

has been rated as “CARE AAA” by Credit Analysis
and Research Limited, denoting negligible
investment risk and ‘AAA/Stable’ by CRISIL
indicating highest degree of certainty regarding
timely payment of financial obligation on the
instruments.

The Bank’s net borrowings during the year was
Rs.7,516.50 crore.

NHB RESIDEX, the first residential housing price
index in the country, was constructed during the
year.

The Bank undertook several new initiatives during
the year to increase accessibility for institutional
finance specially for the underserved and
unserved sections of the society. Some of these
are:

. Introducing the Reverse Mortgage Loan
facility for the senior citizens.

. Introducing a scheme for providing 100%
refinance for top up loans provided by
banks to BPL beneficiaries under the Indira
Awas Yojna (IAY).

Union Finance Minister Shri P Chidambaram launches NHB RESIDEX on July 10, 2007.
Kumari Selja, Minister of State(l/C), Ministry of Housing and Urban Poverty Alleviation graced the occasion
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N s . - , A
Kumari Selja, Minister of State(l/C), Ministry of Housing and Urban Poverty Alleviation releases Occasional Paper |
in the presence of NHB CMD Shri S.Sridhar, Prithviraj Chavan and Dr. H.S. Anand, IAS,
Secretary to the Govt. of India, Ministry of Housing and Urban Poverty Alleviation

. A composite loan product for housing and
income generation viz., Productive Housing
in Rural Areas (PHIRA) for women working
from home.

. Financial support to MFls for undertaking
housing projects for the members of the
SHGs attached to them.

. NHB has also launched a scheme for
extending equity support to Housing
Finance Companies having extensive rural
business network and enthused to use
such network to promote rural housing.

1.1.7 As a part of the ongoing research and knowledge

2.1

management activities of the Bank, two
Occasional Papers viz. ‘Housing Finance Portfolio
of Scheduled Commercial Banks (SCBs) - A Trend
Analysis 2000-05" and ‘Transaction Cost in
Housing" were released during the year.

International Economy: 2006-07

Global economy continued its growth for most
parts of the year 2006-07. However, persistent

2.2

2.3

inflationary pressures and volatility of crude oil
prices pegged the growth at 5.2 per cent, which
was lower than 5.4 per cent registered in the
previous year.

Emerging market economies, however, posted
strong growth in a relatively benign inflation
environment. The strength of macroeconomic
performance has attracted significant capital
flows with net inflows of foreign private capital
to these countries.

During the year, the subprime mortgage crisis in
the United States of America unfolded. It came
to light that excessive mortgage lending to the
borrowers with poor credit histories had been
widespread constituting 13% of the total
residential mortgage market. An array of complex
derivatives had been structured with subprime
mortgages as the underlying assets. The crisis
in the US mortgage market severely impacted
the financial markets and the US economy in
general. Liquidity and credit were both affected
which had a ripple effect internationally. Whilst
subprime mortgage lending helped expand
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2.4

3.1

at the Bank's Stall in a Conference on Financial Inclusion held in Mumbai on 6th June, 2007

homeownership to record levels, the poor
creditworthiness of borrowers coupled with fall
in house prices resulted in a downward spiral of
loan defaults. The ‘originate and distribute’ model
followed in the US ensured transmission of the
subprime lending crisis to the rest of the
economy.

The Indian banking system was however not
affected by the subprime crisis mainly because
of very little cross border exposure of the Indian
financial system to US MBS market or such
associated credit derivatives. However, the crisis
has resulted in a decline in sentiment in the
international corporate bond market along with
emerging market debt. There are evolving
uncertainties with implications for emerging
market economies.

The Domestic Economy: 2006-07

The Indian economy continued to exhibit robust
growth during the year. The GDP registered a

3.2

growth rate of 9.4% in 2006-07, a significant
improvement as compared to 7.5% in 2004-05.
The Services sector has in 2006-07, been the
major contributor to the GDP registering a growth
of 11.2% compared to 9.6% in 2005-06. The
Government's Policies have laid renewed stress
on inclusive growth. This has also been
recognized as an important component of the
macroeconomic and financial sector policies
pursued by the Government of India and the
Reserve Bank of India.

Fiscal correction was one of the primary
objectives of the fiscal policies in 2006-07, in line
with the Fiscal Responsibility and Budget
Management (FRBM) Rules, 2004. This went
hand in hand with the efforts to achieve targeted
economic growth, inclusive market and economic
stability. Reductions in all key deficit indicators,
viz., revenue deficit, fiscal deficit and primary
deficit by 0.1-0.2 percentage point of GDP over
the revised estimates is expected to reduce the
fiscal deficit by at least 0.3 percentage point of




T STErE o (4] NATIONAL HOUSING BANK

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

GDP and the revenue deficit by 0.5 percentage
point each year till 2008-09. Robust growth,
increased tax revenues and prudent expenditure
management policies as major hallmarks
contributed to the improvement in all key deficit
indicators by more than the minimum stipulated
reductions under the FRBM Rules, 2004. The
economy witnessed significant fiscal and
financial consolidation contributing to
macroeconomic growth and stability.

The tax policies of the Government of India
combined with better tax administration, resulted
inimproved revenues with the gross tax/GDP ratio
at 11.5 per cent in 2006-07 (provisional accounts)
compared to 10.3 per cent in 2005-06.

Persistent inflationary tendencies however
continued to pose major challenge to the
economy. The estimates of the Economic Survey
(2006-07) place the average inflation in 2006-07
at 5.2-5.4%. The year witnessed interests in
various categories harden in tandem with the
policy measures of the central bank. The change
in liquidity and inflation was reflected in hardening
of interest rates in 2006-07. The yields in the
Government securities market hardened during
the year. Further, deposit and lending rates of
Banks moved northwards especially in the later
half of the year. The primary market segment of
the capital market continued to exhibit buoyancy
and the stock markets reached record highs
during the year interspersed with periodic
corrections.

The FDI equity inflow was of US $ 15.7 billion as
compared to US $ 5.5 billion during 2005-06. This
is a growth of 185% as compared to the previous
year. Real Estate sector continued to attract
investment through the FDI route.

The Central Bank's monetary policy stance
continued to be guided by the twin objectives of

3.7

3.8

maintaining growth impulses in the economy and
the inflation control. Transition to a higher growth
trajectory continued to pose challenge amid
inflationary expectations. The Central Bank
announced several measures to stem inflationary
expectations which had the intended impact on
interest rates and credit offtake during certain
periods, and in certain segments. As a related
measure, RBI raised the CRR in steps to 5.75%
in February 2007 and further by 25 basis points
to 6.00% during March 2007. Provisioning norms
and risk weights were tightened to ensure asset
quality in the face of sustained high credit growth
to certain sectors, specially real estate and
housing. However, RBI continued with its
initiatives of greater credit penetration and
financial inclusion. In order to channelise larger
credit to the priority sector (including housing
loans up to Rs.20 lakhs), guidelines for the priority
sector lending were revised.

The Central Bank also took measures to
strengthen the accounting and disclosure norms
in order to enforce greater market discipline. Final
guidelines for the implementation of the New
Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel Il) were
issued. In consonance with the stated policy of
benchmarking the Indian financial sector to
international best practices, commercial banks
will start implementing Basel Il norms from end-
March 2008.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation)
Amendment Act, 2007, which had amended the
Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 so as
to provide a legal framework for trading in
securitized debt including mortgage backed debt,
was passed in May 2007. This is expected to
augment the depth of the securitization market
in India.

(Source: Economic Survey 2006-07, Annual Report of RBI 06-07).
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4.1

4.2

Housing & Related Issues

Housing finance encourages savings in the form
of physical assets. It also catalyses growth for
the construction sector by supporting demand
for housing. Both the supply side and demand
sides in the sector experienced inflationary
pressures. On the one hand, property prices were
strong and on the other hand, rates for housing
finance were northbound for most part of the
period. Despite these challenges, fiscal
concessions coupled with sizeable disposable
income of the salaried population fuelled a strong
demand for housing and housing finance during
the year 2006-07. During 2006-07, the aggregate
housing finance disbursed by HFCs was Rs.
40,141 crore as against Rs. 30,109 crore in 2005-
06. In the last five years, housing finance has
recorded compounded annual growth rate of over
40 per cent. In 1992-93, housing loan
disbursements of banks and HFCs aggregated
Rs. 833 crore as against Rs. 1,10,000 crore in
2006-07. The housing loan portfolio of scheduled
commercial banks constituted 13 per cent of
gross bank credit as on March 31, 2007. The
quality of the housing loan portfolio, by and large,
compares favorably with the general asset quality
of the banking system.

Burgeoning volumes in housing finance by banks
and housing finance companies together with
steady increases in property prices was under
careful watch by the Reserve Bank of India. A
number of proactive regulatory measures were
taken during the year with a view to containing
overheating in the sector. In this direction, RBI
signaled restraining credit growth in residential
housing beyond Rs. 20 lakhs and commercial real
estate loans by the commercial banks. It also
enhanced the provisioning norms for standard
advances in housing from 0.4% to 1% for loans
above Rs.2 lakhs.

5.
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Union Budget 2007-08

Under the Bharat Nirman Programme of the
Government of India, 783,000 rural houses were
constructed up to December 2006 and an
additional 914,000 houses were under
construction. As per estimates of Economic
Survey released by Government of India in
February 2007, the annual target of 1,500,000
houses is likely to be exceeded during the year
2006-07. The allocation under this scheme has
been enhanced by 31.6 per cent to provide
Rs.24,603 crore in 2007-08.

Besides rural sector, the Scheme for Urban
Renewal under the Jawaharlal Nehru National
Urban Renewal Mission (JNNURM) continued to
evoke positive response. The enhancement in
the allocation from Rs.4,595 crore in 2006-07 to
Rs.4,987 crore in 2007-08 under this mission, is
expected to bring in higher level of investment in
the urban sector including housing which would
help in an overall improvement in habitat
conditions.

To address the housing needs of the
economically weaker sections of the society,
the banks lend to the eligible beneficiaries under
the Differential Rate of Interest (DRI) scheme.
The scheme provides finance at a rate of 4 per
cent to the weaker sections of the community
engaged in gainful occupations. The limit of the
housing loan per beneficiary was enhanced in
this years budgetary provisions from Rs.5,000
to Rs.20,000. This measure would help the
weaker sections of society who would be able
to avail higher quantum of loan at concessional
rates.

In a bid to boost housing finance activities, the
Income Tax Act provides for creation of reserves
under section 36(1)(viii). During the year, Profit-
making cooperative banks, other than primary
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societies and primary banks (i.e., PACs and
PCARDBs), have been brought on par with other
banks. The benefit of Section 36(1)(viii) will be
available to cooperative banks. This is expected
to encourage co-operative banks to lend for
housing.

Financial Operations of the Bank during
2006-07

6. Resource Mobilization

6.1  During the year, both short term and long term
borrowings were made by the Bank. Long term
borrowings were made mainly by tapping
Commercial Papers and Term Loan facility
availed from banks. During the year the Bank
mobilized Rs.13200.55 crore from various
sources. Of these, an amount of Rs. 5684.05
crore was repaid during the same year so that
net borrowings during the year were Rs.
7516.50 crore.

6.2

6.3

1.1

Rating of borrowing programme

Ratings have been obtained for Bonds/
Commercial Papers of NHB from different rating
agencies. Fitch has awarded a rating of ‘F1+
(ind) and ICRA has given a rating of ‘A1+" to
NHB for raising short term resources through
issuances of Commercial Papers. CARE has rated
NHB's Long Term Borrowing programme as
‘CARE AAA" while CRISIL has given it ‘AAA/
Stable’. These ratings indicate highest degree of
certainty regarding timely payment of financial
obligation on the instruments.

Listing of the Bonds:

The bonds of the Bank are listed on the
Bombay Stock Exchange. In addition, most
of the bonds are also listed on the National
Stock Exchange.

Deployment of Funds

Details of financial assistance extended by the
Bank during 2006-07 in the form of refinance and
direct finance are given below:

Rupees Crore

Loan Disbursements

1999-
00 01 02

2000- 2001-

2002-

2003-
04 05 06 07

2004- 2005- 2006-
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Disbursements during the year under review amounted to Rs. 5,671.60 crore the details of which are
presented in the table below.

Table 7.1 Aggregate Loan Disbursement for the year ended 30 June, 2007 (Rs. in crore)

[A] Refinance 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 | Cumulative
Disbursements since
inception
a) Individuals 3252.89 8062.24 5632.39 5500.00 32174.10
b) Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 245.79
Sub - Total 3252.89 8062.24 5632.39 5500.00 32419.89
[B] Direct Finance
Dishbursements 44.49 27.16 364.56 171.60 949.26
Total dishbursements [A + B] 3297.38 8089.40 5996.95 5671.60 33369.15

1.2 Refinance Operations

During the year 2006-07, refinance aggregating Rs.5500 crore was disbursed, out of which Rs. 125 crore
was disbursed under the Short Term Scheme for HFCs. The details of the financial assistance under the
refinance window is as under:

Table 7.2 Disbursement to various categories of PLIs

Institution category Amount (Rs. crore)
HFCs 1085
HFCs for short term assistance 125
Banks 4280
Cooperative Institutions 10
Total dishursement 5500

The following is the graphical representation of the disbursements during 2005-06:

Sector wise distribution of Refinance Dishursements

Amount (Rs. In Crores)

B HFCs

Wl HFCs for Short
term assistance

0 Banks

O Cooperative
Institutions
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Annual Refinance Dishursements (1999-2007)

Disb.

m Disb.

7.3 Performance under the Golden Jubilee Rural

20

Housing Refinance Scheme

In order to facilitate flow of funds to the rural areas
to address the housing needs, the Bank has been
assisting the Primary Lending Institutions (PLI)
under its Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Refinance
Scheme (GJRHRS). The Scheme was launched
in the year 1997 for promotion of housing activity
in the rural areas. Out of the total term releases
(other than short term ) of Rs.5375 crore made

during the year, 47.07% aggregating Rs.2530 crore
have been made under the Golden Jubilee Rural
Housing Refinance Scheme (GJRHRS) in respect
of loans given by Prime Lending Institutions (PLIs)
in rural areas. The disbursements to Banks under
GJRHRS accounted for 78.26% of the total
disbursements, while the disbursements to HFCs
under the scheme constituted 21.54% of the total
disbursements. The break up of the disbursements
made under the scheme is as under:

Sector wise disbursement under GJRHRS

@ Housing
Finance
Companies

[l Scheduled
Banks

O Cooperative
Sector
Institutions
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1.4
1.4.1

A House constructed under housing project financed by National Housing Bank in Mahboobnagar Distt., Andhra Pradesh

Project Finance

During the year, the Bank extended financial
assistance to public housing and development
agencies for undertaking various types of
housing projects. In addition to Public Housing
Agencies, the Bank has also extended financial
support to the housing schemes formulated by
Non-Government Organisations (NGOs) and
Micro Finance Institutions (MFls) to cater to the
needs of the economically weaker sections of
the society.

1.4.2 The details of direct finance provided are as

follows:

7.4.3 The Bank sanctioned financial assistance of

144

Rs 5.25 crore to a Micro-Finance Institution in
Andhra Pradesh for construction of 750 houses
by its members who are marginal farmers. This
is an initiative towards provision of shelter to the
poor farmers.

The Bank is implementing a project with SPARC,
Mumbai for its slum rehabilitation project at Dharavi.
The unique aspect of this project is that Transferable
Development Rights (TDR’s) have been used as a
form of security for the loan. The residential portion
of the project has been completed in close
coordination with the Slum Rehabilitation Authority
(SRA) and the Slum Dwellers Association and all

Table 7.4 Details of Direct Fnance Dishursements

During the year 2006-07 Cumulative till 30th June 2006
Amount Amount Amount Amount
Sanctioned [Rs. Cr.] | Disbursed [Rs. Cr.] Sanctioned [Rs. Cr.] | Disbursed [Rs. Cr.]
General Fund 558.74 155.00 2234.18 1711.47
Special Fund 2.08 16.60 292.99 177.79
Total 560.82 171.60 2527.117 949.26

21
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1.5

147 slum dwellers have been rehabilitated. The new
habitat provides for all basic amenities like Water
Supply, Drainage, Toilets etc.

Equity Participation by NHB

As a promotional role, NHB has equity
participation in three HFCs, namely, Can Fin
Homes Limited, GRUH Finance Limited and Cent
Bank Home Finance Limited. The value of equity
holding in these three HFCs as on 30.06.2007
stood at Rs 16.17 Crores. There was no fresh
equity participation by the Bank during the year.

Financial Performance: 2006-07

During the year under review, profit before tax
(excluding deferred tax provision) amounted to
Rs.183.69 crore as against Rs. 138.26 crore during
the previous year registering a growth of 33 per
cent. Profit after tax worked out to Rs. 114.31 crore
as against Rs. 86.39 crore during the previous year
registering a growth of 32 per cent. As a result of
increase in the profit, the return on equity capital
for the year 2006-07 rose to 25.40 per cent as
against 19.20 per cent during the year 2005-06.
The plough back of profit to Reserves led to
increase in Net Owned Funds of the Bank from
Rs.1, 729.40 crore to Rs. 1,829.19 crore.

General Activities

9.
9.1

Policy Review

Refinance

9.1.1 Equity participation in rural HFCs:

22

NHB has formulated a Scheme to participate in
the equity of HFC focusing primarily on rural
housing loans. This is as part of the promotional
role of NHB to address flow of funds to rural
housing loans. The bank has already taken up
due diligence of two such proposals.

9.2

Project Finance

9.2.1 Renewing its focus on the provision of shelter

10.
10.1

10.2

to the unserved and underserved segments of
the population, the Bank amended its Project
Finance Policy to give more emphasis on EWS/
LIG projects. The Bank has identified ‘Housing
Microfinance’ to play an important role in the
various interventions in rural areas that the Bank
proposes to take up. The objective is to
overcome the limitation of income of the rural
households by providing solutions like
encouraging incremental housing. Top up loans
to supplement government sponsored
programmes like Indira Awas Yojna and Savings
linked Housing loans are some of the products
which the Bank is examining for matching the
requirements of the low income households in
the rural areas.

Regulation & Supervision
Registration of HFCs

As at the end of June 2007, the total number of
HFCs having Certificate of Registration from NHB
under section 29A of the NHB Act, 1987 was 42
with 20 of these HFCs having permission to
accept deposits from the public. During the year,
Certificates of Registration granted to 4 HFCs
were cancelled.

Consumer Awareness

With a view to furthering the cause of customer
protection and education in the housing finance
field, National Housing Bank has initiated steps
that would culminate in the setting up of a
common forum of banks and housing finance
companies engaged in the field of housing
finance, which may in due course develop into a
Self Regulatory Organisation. The proposed
objectives of the forum are:
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a)  Define and maintain high professional and
ethical standards in all areas of operation
of the housing finance industry;

b)  Promote and exchange opinions on best
business practices and code of conduct;

c) Project image of the housing finance
lenders as responsive, caring to customer
requirements and demands;

d)  Embrace best practice customer services;

e)  Act as a clearing house for professional
information exchange and development of
suitable data base.

f) Interact with regulators, government on
common issues of housing finance;

g)  Facilitate the functioning and growth of
housing finance market in a healthy and
holistic manner;

h)  Assist NHB in its efforts for consumer
protection, financial education, fairness
and transparency in lending.

The initiatives will also help in introducing of a
system of Certified Independent Mortgage
Counsellors who will provide fair and objective
information on the implications of raising
housing loan, various requirements for availing
housing loan and terms & special features of
various housing loan schemes available from
banks and housing finance companies.
Members of public, if they so desire, will be
able to avail such guidance from the proposed
Mortgage Counsellors on payment of reasonable
charges.

Fair Practices Code

In keeping with the best practices in this regard,
the National Housing Bank has issued Guidelines
on Fair Practices Code vide circular No. NHB(ND)/
DRS/Pol-16/2006 dated September 5, 2006 for

10.4

10.5

housing finance companies (HFCs). The Code seeks
to promote fair practices by laying down standards
for HFCs in dealing with customers. The Code also
seeks to bring in greater transparency so that
customers of HFCs have better understanding of
what they can reasonably expect of the products
and services. Based on these Guidelines, HFCs have
formulated suitable ‘Fair Practices Code” with the
approval of their respective Boards and displayed
the Code in their branches and on their web-sites
for the benefit of their customers.

Initiatives taken by NHB on KYC guidelines &
Anti Money Laundering measures

Further to the detailed Guidelines issued to HFCs
on ‘Know Your Customer’ Norms And Anti-Money
Laundering Measures in April 2006, the reporting
system for HFCs in terms of the Prevention of
Money Laundering Act, 2002 was finalised during
the year. This was done in consultation with the
Financial Intelligence Unit-India (FIU-IND) of the
Government of India and several leading HFCs.
The Bank has issued guidelines on the Reporting
System during July, 2006 and September, 2006.

NHB also convened a meeting of the Principal
Officers of the HFCs at Bangalore on September
15, 2006 to facilitate the interface of FIU-IND of
the Government of India with HFCs and also to
sensitise and orient them for the effective
implementation of the statutory reporting system
pertaining to Cash/Suspicious Transactions. The
system has since been operationalised.

Supervision of HFCs

During the year 2006-07, the Bank has
undertaken regulatory inspections of 20 housing
finance companies under Section 34 of the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

The Bank has also filed winding-up petitions
under Section 33B(1) of the National Housing
Bank Act, 1987 against two HFCs. The Bank has
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initiated legal proceedings in terms of section 49
of the NHB Act against one of the HFC.

Co-ordination with Other
Authorities

Regulatory

NHB continues the process of coordination with
other Regulatory Authorities through State Level
Co-ordination Committee (SLCC) meetings
convened by the Reserve Bank of India at
Regional offices. The participants include
representatives from the Reserve Bank of India,
the Police Department, officials of the state
government in Ministries/Departments of Home,
Finance, Law, Economic Offences Wing,
Registrar of Companies, Company Law Board,
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India at State/
Regional levels etc.

10.7

During the year 2006-07, NHB participated in 11
SLCC meetings at various Regional Offices of RBI.

On-line submission of Statutory Returns

In order to ensure international best practices;
taking advantage of technical advancement; user
convenience without compromising security/
confidentiality and integrity, the Bank has
implemented a Central Forms Repository System
for on-line submission of returns by HFCs, replacing
the system of submission of returns through post/
mail/fax, etc. With effect from 1 July, 2007, the
manual system of submissions by the HFCs has
been discontinued. With the operationalisation of
this system the submission of returns by HFCs
has become easier and more efficient. The manual
submission of returns stands discontinued with
effect from 1 July, 2007.

1. ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC DEPOSITS BY HFCs- MINIMUM INVESTMENT GRADE RATING

COMPULSORY

With effect from September 29, 2006 no housing finance company can accept or renew public
deposits unless the housing finance company obtains a minimum investment grade rating for
its fixed deposits from any one of the approved rating agencies (CRISIL, ICRA Ltd, CARE &

FITCH Ratings India Private Ltd.).

2. GENERAL PROVISION OF 0.4% OF THE TOTAL OUTSTANDING AMOUNT OF NON-HOUSING
LOANS WHICH ARE STANDARD ASSETS

HFCs have been directed to make a general provision of 0.4% of the total outstanding amount
of non-housing loans which are standard assets, in four quarters commencing from the Quarter

ended March 31, 2007, as under:
a) 0.1 per cent by March 31, 2007
b) 0.2 per cent by June 30, 2007

c) 0.3 per cent by September 30, 2007

d) 0.4 per cent by December 31, 2007

10.7 Amendments to Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2001

contd....
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3.

CREATION OF FLOATING CHARGE ON THE ASSETS INVESTED BY THEM IN TERMS OF SUB-
SECTIONS (1) AND (2) OF SECTION 29B OF THE NATIONAL HOUSING BANK ACT, 1987

With effect from April 13, 2007, in chapter lI- Acceptance of Public Deposits, after paragraph 14, of
the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2001 a new paragraph as 14A has been inserted
requiring all Housing Finance Companies accepting/holding public deposits to create floating charge
on the assets invested by them in terms of sub-sections (1) and (2) of Section 29B of the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987 in favour of their depositors.

MINIMUM NET OWNED FUND (NOF) OF Rs. 200 LAKHS

National Housing Bank, has specified the minimum Net Owned Fund to be two crores of rupees for
a housing finance institution which is a company which carries on the business of a housing finance
institution on or before March 31, 2008.

OTHERS

The Monitoring Committee constituted by the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi regarding Unauthorised
Construction, Misuse of Properties and Encroachment on Public Land, issued certain directions for
immediate compliance by banks/Financial Institutions. These were circulated to all registered HFCs

for due compliance.

11.

11.1

Golden Jubilee Rural Housing
Finance Scheme

The Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance
Scheme (GJRHFS) was launched in the year
1997-98 with a view to provide improved access
to housing finance to people living in rural areas.
The Scheme provides for construction of new
dwelling unit or upgradation of the existing one.

11.2

The Scheme is implemented through various PLIs
namely HFCs, Public Sector Banks (PSB) and Co-
operative sector institutions. NHB is the
monitoring agency, and fixes annual targets to
each PLI.

A total of 2,98,426 units were financed by PSBs
and HFCs as against the target of 3,30,000 units.
The performance of banks and HFCs is as follows:

Table: 11.1 Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance Scheme: performance by PLIs

(dwelling units)

Institution Target Achievement

2005-06 2006-07 2005-06 2006-07
HFCs 82,500 94200 68,938 56011
PSBs 1,92,500 235800 2,29,113 242415
TOTAL 2,75,000 330000 2,98,651 298426
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11.3 Cumulative Performance under GJRHFS the period 1997-2007, thereby indicating a
performance of 103 per cent.
the Scheme during the different years has been

11.3.1 A total of 19.42 lakh dwelling units have been

financed as against the target of 19.30 lakh during as follows:

The progress under

Table 11.2 Year wise progress under Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance Scheme

(No. of dwelling units)

Year Target Achievement Amount (Rs. crore)
1997-1998 50,000 51,272 (102%) NA
1998-1999 1,00,000 1,25,731 (125%) NA
1999-2000 1,25,000 1,41,363 (113%) NA
2000-2001 1,50,000 1,58,426 (105%) NA
2001-2002 1,75,000 1,87,268 (107%) 3246.03
2002-2003 2,25,000 1,78,200 (79%) 3816.34
2003-2004 2,50,000 2,43,753 (97%) 6353.82
2004-2005 2,50,000 2,58,562 (103%) 6440.95

2005-06 2,75,000 2,98,651 (109%) 8367.87
2006-07 3,30,000 2,98,426 (90%) 7664.58
Total 1997-2007 1,930,000 1,941,652 (100.6%)

NA: Not Available; Figures in Perthenesis indicate per cent achievement

Graph: 11.1 Targets and Achievements under GJRHFS

Performance under GJRHFS
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11.3.2 Keeping in view the compounded annual rate of

12.

12.1

12.2

growth of targets under the Scheme, a target of
financing 3,30,000 units during the year 2007-
08 has been fixed. The Scheme is being closely
monitored by NHB and at the State Level Bankers
Committee Meeting Forum for banks.

Business Planning and Promotion
Activities

Fraud Management Cell

The Bank has set up a ‘Fraud Management Cell’
to collect information from HFCs regarding frauds
committed on housing loans. The ‘Fraud
Management Cell’ continued to collect and share
information from HFC's regarding frauds
committed on housing loans. Towards this
objective, the Bank regularly issues circulars
indicating the causative factors and suggestive
remedial action. All HFCs have been advised to
take necessary safeguards and exercise
adequate controls to avoid occurrence of
fraudulent transactions.

Developmental Activities through Consumer
Education and Addressing Consumer
Grievances

While working towards all round development
of the housing sector, NHB shares the concern
of RBI on the issue of a price bubble and
overheating in the housing finance market.
Currently, due to lack of reliable information in
the housing finance sector, it is difficult to
undertake an empirical analysis of the current
conditions in the housing market. Formation of a
sound and reliable database of information
pertaining to the housing finance sector both from
Banks and HFCs which could assist in developing
policy choices in regard to the housing market is
the need of the day. NHB has identified this as
one of the priority areas for its developmental

12.3

12.4

initiatives and has been working towards building
a comprehensive information system which will
collect information on various aspects from all
players in the housing finance industry, process
the same and share it for the benefit of the market
players.

Consumer education and protection is one of the
key focus areas of NHB. NHB has already
introduced a ‘Code of Fair Conduct * to be adopted
by the HFCs apart from making investment grade
rating mandatory for the deposit taking HFCs.
As part of its promotional measures, NHB also
addresses complaints received from individuals
against HFCs. The complaints mainly pertain to
deposits accepted by the HFCs and loans
extended by them.

Meeting of CEOs of HFCs and senior officials
of Public Sector banks

During the year, two meetings with the Chief
Executive Officers of HFCs were held at New
Delhi. Issues like new products viz. reverse
mortgage loans, rating of builders, online
submission of returns etc. were some of the
points that were discussed in the meetings.
Review of performances by Banks and HFCs
under the GJRHFS and new targets for 2007-08
were also done in one of these meetings.

In order to discuss issues of common concern, NHB
also conducted two joint meetings of HFCs and
Banks. The participants discussed on issues like
setting up of the proposed India Mortgage Lenders
Forum, introduction of Certified Independednt
Mortgage Counsellors, improving affordability of
housing finance, measures to check fraudulent
transactions in housing finance market etc.

International Interactions

During the year the Bank explored expertise of
other international agencies to build on internal
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competencies. During the year, the Bank
participated in the 26™ World Congress of
International Union for Housing Finance (IUHF)
in Vancouver, Canada. The IUHF World Congress
provided an opportunity to network with a large
number of similar organizations from USA,
Europe, Africa and Asia. The Bank gathered
information about existing lending practices in
mortgage lending and possibility of collaborations
between India and these countries in future.

CMD was invited by the World Bank to
participate as a panelist in the workshop on
‘Housing Policy & Growth’ organized by the World
Bank under the auspices of the Growth
Commission.

The First Asia-Pacific Ministerial Conference was
held in Delhi in December 2006. NHB actively
participated in the Conference and also co-
organised a National Conference on ‘Affordable
Housing for All'. In the exhibition held on the
occasion, many participating nations had evinced
interest in the housing finance system of India.
The Bank had also put up its stall in the exhibition
organized as a part of the Conference. The Bank's
stall attracted a large number of international and
domestic delegates.

The Bank also participated in the annual meeting
of Institute of International Finance during
September 2006 at Singapore. The Bank also
participated in the Regional Conference on Credit
Reporting Systems in Africa organized by World
Bank Group in association with International
Finance Corporation. The Bank has also entered
into collaboration with UNESCAP to conduct a
joint study of the housing finance systems in
countries in South and South East Asia.

National Interactions

The Bank sponsored conference on “Emerging
Trends in Urbanization: Focus New Town, Kolkata”

12.6

in Kolkata organized by FICCI. It also sponsored
the Conference of Econometrics Society held in
January 2007 at lIT, Mumbai. CMD addressed the
participants of both the conferences and briefed
them about the recent developments in the
housing and housing finance sector.

In order to provide thrust to rural housing and
encourage Regional Rural Banks (RRBs) to build
a healthy rural housing portfolio, NHB organized
a conference of South based RRBs in Bangalore
on September 02, 2006. The participants
included Chairmen/General Managers of 15 RRBs
in Southern Region and Senior Officers of the
sponsoring Public Sector Bank. The conference
emphasized the scope for NHB and RRBs to work
together and through this engagement NHB and
RRB would participate in funding of rural housing
projects.

World Habitat Day 2006

On the occasion of the World Habitat Day 2006,
the Bank had announced an essay competition
on the following topics in keeping with the theme
of the World Habitat Day 2006 “Cities — Magnets
of Hope™.:

a.  Green and Intelligent Urban Buildings and
Infrastructure

b. Land Tenure for the Urban Poor, and
C. Efficient Use of Urban Land

The competition was open to all employees of
Reserve Bank of India, Financial Institutions,
HFCs registered with National Housing Bank, and
Scheduled Commercial Banks. The response to
the competition has been overwhelming and the
contents and suggestions of the essays thought-
provoking as well as practical. The winners of
the competition were felicitated during the
celebrations of World Habitat Day 2007 held on
October 1, 2007.
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Kumari Selja, Minister of State(I/C) Ministry of Housmg and Urban Poverty Alleviation and Shri S. Sndhar CMD, NHB
releasing NHB- Award Winning Essays on the occasion of Word Habitat Day-06 in the presence of other dignitaries

12.7 Right to Information Act, 2005

13.

13.1

As a public authority as defined in the Right to
Information Act, 2005 (which came into effect
from October 13, 2005), the Bank is obliged to
provide information to members of public. In
keeping with the requirements of the Act, the
Bank has designated an official as Central Public
Information Officer.

Capacity Building

As a capacity building measure in the housing
finance sector, the Bank organises various
training programmes on matters related to
housing finance for the personnel of the sector.
During the year, the bank has organized eight
training programmes. About 250 participants
from various institutions viz. Housing Finance
Companies, Banks, Rating agencies participated
in these training programmes.

13.2 The training programmes covered many topics

related to housing finance such as Orientation
Programme in Housing Finance, Legal Issues

in housing finance, Residential Mortgage
Backed Securitisation, Risk Management and
Asset Liability Management and Regulatory
framework for Housing Finance Companies.
Recent issues like “Fraud Management” and
“KYC Guidelines and Fair Practices Code”
which have been engaging the attention of
banking and finance sectors were also
discussed in the programmes through
dedicated programmes on the topics. In order
to encourage participation of the players in
knowledge dissemination, the Bank tied up
with Kerala State Housing Board (KSHB) for a
programme on “Housing and Infrastructure
Project Financing”.

13.3 The objective of the above programmes has been

to familiarize the participants with the dynamics
of the formal housing finance system and enable
them to deal with the related strategic and
operational aspects in an effective and prudent
manner. The strategic approach of the
methodology employed has been to impart
knowledge and information based training on
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specialized issues through discussion oriented
and analytical exercises. The faculty for these
programmes is drawn both from in-house as well
as experts in the field including policy makers
and housing finance practitioners from Reserve
Bank of India, Government of India, Scheduled
Commercial Banks, Housing Finance Institutions
and other renowned Academic and Research
Institutions.

The programmes have been organized in different
regions so as to give a wider geographical
coverage in terms of participation. During the
year, programmes were conducted in
Ahmedabad, Bhubaneshwar, Chandigarh,
Guwahati, Hyderabad, Jammu, Pune, and
Thiruvananthapuram.

Residential Mortgage-Backed
Securitization

Residential Mortgage Backed Securitisation
(RMBS)

During the year, the Bank securitized housing
loans aggregating Rs.98.94 crore. The issue was
the maiden transaction undertaken by the Bank,
post-issuance of the Securitization Guidelines by
the RBI. NHB has so far completed fourteen
residential mortgage backed securitisation
transactions involving 38,809 individual housing
loans of six Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
and one Scheduled Commercial Bank.
Cumulatively, housing loans amounting to
Rs.862.20 crore have been securitized by the
Bank. The success of the issues of RMBS has
significantly provided means to better understand
and address the various legal, regulatory, fiscal,
accounting and other capital market related
issues relating to such transactions as also
various policy issues for a conducive environment
for such issuances.

14.2

14.3

The structure of NHB's RMBS issues has been
designed under the provisions of the National
Housing Bank (Amendment) Act, 2000 (Sections
14 (ea), 14 (eb), 14 (ec) and 18), which authorize
the Bank to carry out securitization transactions
and issue mortgage backed securities as trust
certificates of beneficial interest and act as
Trustee for the holders of such securities.

Performance of the Pools of Housing loans
Securitized:

The Bank has appointed the respective
originators as Servicing and Paying Agents (S&P
Agents) to ensure that collections in respect of
each of the pool of securitized loans are
distributed to the respective PTC holders and
Service providers. The yields to “Class A" PTC
holders have been consistent with that indicated
at the time of issuances.

Measures for Market Development

a) Securities Contracts
Amendment Bill, 2007

(Regulation)

NHB's endeavours for introducing RMBS
as securities under the Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA)
received a major impetus with the
announcement made in the Union Budget
2005-06 that securitized mortgage debt
would be covered under the definition of
eligible “Securities” under the SCRA. The
Bill has been approved by both Houses
of the Parliament during the current year.
The amendment is expected to facilitate
the listing of Residential Mortgage
Backed Securities on stock exchanges
(and hence they can be traded), which is
expected to propel the development of
secondary market for residential
mortgages to new heights, enabling
increased growth of the Indian housing
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15.1

finance system ultimately benefiting the
home loan borrowers.

b) Development of Secondary Mortgage
Market Institution in India

With a view to develop the Residential
Mortgage Backed Securities (RMBS)
market in India, a study has been
commissioned jointly by ADB, NHB, HDFC
and HUDCO. The Study commenced in
May 2006. A detailed analysis of the
various issues pertaining to securitization
is being pursued so as to evolve a model
for securitization mechanism for issuance
of RMBS in India supported by a
Secondary Mortgage Institution along
similar lines as Fannie Mae, Ginnie Mae
etc. in the U.S.A.

c) Title Indemnity:

Title Indemnity is a risk mitigation tool
whereby the title holder is protected from
any loss due to disputes over ownership
of property. Prima facie, there exists a felt
need for the introduction of the facility in
the country. Lenders as well as buyers of
property can avail of the facility. NHB has
been interacting with leading providers of
title indemnity and mortgage transaction
management services. NHB has initiated
a feasibility study in this regard.

New Initiatives
Reverse Mortgage

NHB has conceptualized the Reverse Mortgage
Loan (RML) product, exclusively for house
owning senior citizens to address their financial
needs for up-gradation, renovation and extension
of their residential property and for uses
associated with home improvement and

15.2

supplementing pension/other income. RML
enables senior citizens above the age of 60 years
to receive periodic loan payments against
mortgage of their self occupied property. The
principal and interest accrued can be repaid
through sale of the property on the borrower’s
demise or on permanently moving out of the
house. RML can also be repaid/prepaid by the
senior citizen / legal heirs.

Pursuant to the announcement made in the Union
Budget speech of the Hon'ble Finance Minister
in February 2007 and with a view to putting in
place a facilitative framework for the introduction
of Reverse Mortgage Loan in India, NHB
formulated the Draft Operational Guidelines for
RML, in consultation with the Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs) and Banks. The draft
guidelines were placed on NHB's website and
comments/feedback invited on the same from
the HFCs, Banks and members of the public in
March 2007. Based on the suggestions/feedback
received, NHB issued the Final Operational
Guidelines for RML to Banks/HFCs on May 31,
2007.

NHB in consultation with a reputed legal firm,
prepared model formats of the RML Documents
for suitable adoption by the Primary Lending
Institutions (PLIs).

Recognizing the need of Senior Citizens for
being provided adequate counseling on the
various aspects of RML, NHB proposes to set
up a Counseling Centre at its premises in New
Delhi and in other centres in due course in
association with interested civil society
organisations.

Productive Housing in Rural Areas

The Bank introduced a new Scheme viz.
Productive Housing in Rural Areas (PHIRA) in
which a composite loan for housing as well as
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undertaking income generating activity is
provided as a single window. The concept
underlying the Scheme is that, a house in rural
area can be leveraged to generate additional
income for the household, if institutional credit
is available both for productive activity and for
the additional housing required to carry out the
activity. The Bank would be implementing the
Scheme in partnership with SCBs, RRBs and
MFls.

Refinance for Top-up Loan for Indira Awas
Yojana beneficiaries

NHB has introduced a scheme providing 100%
refinance for top up loans provided by banks to
beneficiaries under the Indira Awas Yojna (IAY)
of the Government of India upto a maximum of
Rs 20,000/- per beneficiary. The IAY Scheme
provides for grant assistance to the extent of Rs.
25,000/- per house for normal areas and Rs.
217,500/ for hilly areas and the same is shared
between the Centre and the States on a 75:25
basis. The Scheme specifically targets the rural
BPL households.

15.4

15.5

Equity Participation in New Rural Housing
Finance Companies

NHB has also launched a scheme for extending
equity support to Housing Finance Companies
having extensive rural business network and
enthused to use such network to promote rural
housing. The equilty participation of NHB will
not exceed 26% of the paid up capital of the HFC
and shall be limited to Rs 25 crores.

Scheme for Development of Plots in Rural
Areas for RRBs

Developed plots for construction of houses are
scarce in rural areas. Taking note of supply side
constraints, some RRB’s are attempting to
formulate schemes to finance plotted
development projects undertaken by developers
in rural places. The entrepreneurs taking up these
projects are all small developers. These loans,
where the RRB's exposure for a single project
does not exceed Rs.5 crores and average size of
the plot does not exceed 2000 sqg. ft will be
eligible for NHB refinance.

Signing of Memorandum of Co-Operation. From L To R. Shri Sangeet Shukla,

CGM, SBI; Shri S.Sridhar, CMD, NHB; Shri S.Kumar, ED, NHB
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16.

Partnership Initiatives

16. 1 During the year, the Bank launched a new

16.2

17.
17.1

17.2

initiative of entering into institutional partnerships
for facilitating Bank’s efforts to develop the
housing and housing finance sectors in a holistic
manner. The partnerships also seek to carry out
various activities for mutual co-operation and
business development in the areas of training and
research consultancy, integrated township
development, low cost housing, housing in
disaster prone areas, tribal housing, rural housing
and such other areas as mutually agreed upon.

In this regard, NHB signed Memoranda of Co-
operation with three commercial banks, namely,
Oriental Bank of Commerce, State Bank of India,
United Bank of India, an NGO, DHAN Foundation,
and, an academic institution, School of Planning
and Architecture, New Delhi.

IT Initiatives
Central Forms Repository System

In order to streamline the data collation process
of the Bank and to impart it more authenticity,
the Bank had launched the Central Forms
Repository (CFR): the single window information
collation mechanism. Installed in January’ 2007,
the platform is designed to address the
information requirement all the departments of
the Bank. The platform has been made
operational and in the first phase of
implementation, HFCs are submitting their
statutory returns to the Department of
Regulation & Supervision (DRS) through the
CFR.

Enterprise-wide implementation of SAP

The Bank had integrated its major operations in
2004 by implementing Enterprise Resource

17.3

18.

18.1

18.2

Planning (ERP) system. The facility has now
been integrated with the financial operations of
the Bank by including Project Financing
functions and Treasury Operations. The Bank
also envisages to migrate the existing platform
of refinancing functions to the ERP platform. This
is expected to help the Bank by allowing overall
integration with the Accounting and MIS
functions. The final migration would also help
enterprise-wide integration of operations and
bring all the systems under the single ERP
platform.

Research Activities

The Bank undertook research activities on various
topics relevant to the housing finance scenario
in the country. The results of two such activities
viz. the ‘Transaction Cost in Housing’ and
‘Housing Finance Portfolio of Scheduled
Commercial Banks (SCBs) - A Trend Analysis
2000-05" were published as Occasional Papers
by the Bank. The Bank is conducting more such
research studies and hopes to share the results
by way of publications from time to time.

Other Developments: Real Estate
Price Indices for the residential
housing segment (RESIDEX)

Movement in prices in the real estate sector,
specially the residential housing segment has
always evoked keen interest from all segments of
society, not only from the affordability angle but
also from the view point of wealth effects attached
to housing. Though the residential property market
in India is quite active, there was no institutional
mechanism to estimate the demand and supply
and track the house price movements over time.

To address this void, the National Housing
Bank undertook a pilot project to capture the
movements of the prices in this segment and
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develop a suitable price index. Data was will also find the Index valuable, particularly in
collected from 5 major Indian cities viz. Delhi valuation of collateral security in the form of
& NCR, Mumbai, Kolkata, Bengaluru and underlying mortgages.
Bhopal, representing different regions of the
country. A Technical Advisory Group was 19, cOrporate Governance
constituted with representatives from the
19.1 Commitment to Best Practices

Government, RBl and NHB in addition to
independent experts to assist NHB in the
project and guide its implementation.

The index for capturing house price
movements has been named NHB RESIDEX.
The index was formally launched by Honb'le
Finance Minister of India, Shri P. Chidambaram
on July 10, 2007. National Housing Bank will
take up preparation of the Index on a half yearly
basis. In the initial phase, it is proposed to
cover 35 cities having population of more than
a million. Subsequently, the coverage of the
Index will be enlarged to include 63 cities.
Finally, nationwide representative indices will
be prepared.

NHB RESIDEX will be an indicator for home
buyers aiding them in their purchase decisions
by enabling comparison between cities, between
the localities in the same city and comparison of
a price rise in a particular city, locality over time.
Banks and Housing Finance Companies who have
significant risk exposure to the housing sector

With a commitment to follow best practices on
corporate governance, the Bank has laid
emphasis on the cardinal values of fairness,
transparency and accountability for
performance at all levels in dealing with its’
stakeholders. To facilitate that the right
information is accessible to the right people at
the right time, the Bank is in the process of
introducing an electronic document storage and
retrieval system. Thus, the affairs of the
business of the Bank incorporate good corporate
governance practices.

NHB's website contains all the information
about its business activities, new products,
organisation, etc. Various information relating
to financial assistance from NHB, information
for HFCs, NHB's publications, information for
HFCs' depositors, etc. are also available at the
web site for HFIs, and public at large. Sample
application forms for companies desirous to
register with NHB and/or seeking equity support
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from NHB, are available on the website. NHB
also publishes notices in newspapers in the
matter of regulation & supervision of HFCs in
the public interest.

principles with due regard to public interest. The
Board has constituted two Committees, viz., (a)
Executive Committee of Directors [EC] and (b)
Audit Committee of the Board [ACB] to enable
better and focused attention on the affairs of

19.2 Board of Directors .
the Bank. The functions of the EC and ACB are
The Board of Directors has been constituted in well-defined and the Board has delegated
accordance with the provisions contained in certain powers to these Committees. The
Chapter Il of the National Housing Bank Act, Board/Committee meetings are held at regular
1987. As per the provisions of the Section 5(1) intervals.
of the Act, the general superintendence, o
o g P . 19.3 Constitution of the Board
direction and management of the affairs of the
business of the Bank are vested in the Board of The composition of the Board/Committee and the
Directors. The Board comprises of the Chairman nature of appointment during the year July 1,
& Managing Director of the Bank and eleven 2006 to June 30, 2007 are furnished below:
non-executive Directors, who act on business
19.4 Constitution of the Board of NHB
Sl. | Name of the Qualifications Appointment u/s 6 Date of Date of Member in
No. | Director of the NHB Act, Appointment | Retirement | Constituted
1987 Committees
.  Whole time Director
1. | Shri S. Sridhar M.Sc. (Physics), Section 6(1)(a) — 18-04-2006 — ECD
Master's in Financial | Chairman & MD
Mgt., CAIIB
Il.  Part time Director — Non Official
2. | Dr. Errol D’Souza M.A. (Economics), Section 6(1)(b) — 09-08-2005 — —
Ph. D Expert
3. | Shri Vidyadhar B.Arch., PGD in Section 6(1)(b) — 12-08-2005 — ACB
K. Phatak Town Planning Expert
4. | Shri R.V. Shastri M.A. (Economics), Section 6(1)(c) — 10-08-2005 — EC
CAIIB Professional
5. | Ms. Jayshree B. Com., Chartered | Section 6(1)(c)- 12-08-2005 —_ ACB
A. Vyas Accountant Professional
6. | Ms. Shyamala M.Com.,CAIIB Section 6(1)(d) — 21-11-2005 — (i) EC &
Gopinath RBI Nominee (i) ACB
7. | Shri Lakshmi M.A. (Economics), Section 6(1)(d) — 20-07-2006 — (i) EC &
Chand, IAS (Retd.) L.L.B. RBI Nominee (ii) ACB
8. | Dr. H. S. Anand, IAS Ph.D Section 6(1)(e) — 18-06-2007 — —
Central Govt. Official
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9. | Shri Ranijit Issar, IAS M.A. Section 6(1)(e) — 17-04-2006 18-06-2007 | —
Central Govt. Official
10. | Shri Amitabh M.A.(Political Section 6(1)(e) — 18-03-2004 — (i) EC &
Verma, IAS Science), M.A. Central Govt. Official (ii) ACB
(Economics), U.K.
11. | Ms. Nilam M.Sc. (Physics) Section 6(1)(e) — 07-09-2005 — (i) EC &
Sawhney, IAS Central Govt. Official (i) ACB
12. | Shri MVPC Sastry L.L.M. (International | Section 6(1)(f) — 06-09-2007 — —
IAS Law) State Govt. Official
13. | Shri Mohinder Singh M.Tech (Computer Tech) | Section 6(1)(f) — 13-05-2005 22-10-2007 | —
IAS B.E. (Electronics) State Govt. Official
14. | Shri B.B. Singh, IAS Graduate Section 6(1)(f) — 02-02-2007 13-05-2007 | —
State Govt. Official
15. | Shri D.C. Lakha, IAS M.A. (Political Section 6(1)(f) — 24-11-2006 02-02-2007 | —
Science), L.L.B. State Govt. Official
16. | Shri K. L. Meena, IAS M. Sc. (Botany), Section 6(1)(f) — 05-04-2006 24-11-2006 | —
Dip. in Forestry State Govt. Official

Note : Present Directors names have been indicated in bold letters.
19.5 Meeting Details

During the year 2006-07, the Board met four times, EC met three times and ACB met four times. All the meetings
were held at the Head Office of the Bank in New Delhi. The attendance details of the Directors at the meetings are
furnished hereunder:

Details of Meetings of the Board of Directors

SI. No. Name of the Director Meetings Meetings Held
Attended during the tenure
1. Shri S. Sridhar 4 4
2. Dr. Errol D'Souza 3 4
3. Shri Vidyadhar K. Phatak 4 4
4. Shri R.V. Shastri 4 4
5. Ms. Jayshree A. Vyas 1 4
6. Ms. Shyamala Gopinath 4 4
7. Shri Lakshmi Chand 3 4
8. Dr. H. S. Anand - 1
9. Shri Ranijit Issar 3 3
10. Shri Amitabh Verma 4 4
11. Ms. Nilam Sawhney 2 4
12. Shri A. K. Parida 4 4
13. Shri Mohinder Singh 1 1
14. Shri B.B. Singh - 1
15. Shri D.C. Lakha - 1
16. Shri K. L. Meena - 1
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Details of Meetings of Executive Committee

Sl. No. Name of the Director Meetings Meetings Held
Attended during the tenure
1. Shri S. Sridhar 3 3
2. Shri R.V. Shastri 1 2
3. Ms. Shyamala Gopinath 2 3
4. Shri Lakshmi Chand 2 3
5. Shri Amitabh Verma 2 3
6. Ms. Nilam Sawhney 3

Details of Meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board

Sl. No. Name of the Director Meetings Meetings Held
Attended during the tenure
1. Shri Lakshmi Chand 3 3
2. Shri Vidyadhar K. Phatak 4 4
3. Ms. Jayshree A. Vyas 1 4
4. Ms. Shyamala Gopinath 3 4
5. Shri Amitabh Verma 3 4
6. Ms. Nilam Sawhney 1 4

19.6 Auditors

M/s. D. Singh & Co., Chartered Accountant have
been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of NHB
by the Reserve Bank of India. The Half-yearly
(31st December) and Annual Accounts (30th
June) of NHB together with the report of the
statutory auditors are placed first before the ACB
for observation and then to the Board for
adoption. The statutory auditors are invited to
the ACB/Board meeting(s) where the annual
accounts are placed, to express their views and
observations on the accounts. In addition to
limited review of Half-yearly accounts and
auditing Annual Accounts of the Bank, they are

Note : Present Directors/Members names have been indicated in bold letters.

also doing the audit of the Bank's accounts for
the year ended 31 March for tax purposes.

Presently, the internal audit functions have
been assigned to M/s. S. Jaykishan & Co,
Chartered Accountants. The firm submits two
internal audit reports, viz. a quarterly report
on Head Office and a monthly report on
Mumbai Regional Office, regarding the position
of housekeeping, including reconciliation of
Bank/Inter branch accounts, adjustment of
entries outstanding in reconciliation and
adjustment of outstanding sundry/suspense
entries, submission of various returns to RBI,
etc. and one monthly report on concurrent
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audit on investments. The reports are
processed and placed before the ACB for their
perusal and observations. The status of
reporting the internal audit reports to ACB are
up-to-date. The internal auditors are invited to
the ACB meeting to express their views and
observations, when required.

Human Resources
Staff Strength

The total staff strength of the Bank, as on 30"
June, 2007, stood at 67 as against 78 at the
close of previous year. In addition to this, the
Bank had appointed on deputation four officers
from RBI.

To upgrade the skills and enhance the
proficiency of its human capital, the Bank
deputed its officers for various training and
management development programmes during
the year, besides organizing in-house
programmes for this purpose. During the year
35 officers were nominated to training
programmes conducted by various training
institutes. In addition, 5 officers were sent for
overseas training and conferences.

Apart from this, the following training programmes
were conducted in-house for the officers:

1. Customised Leadership Renewal
Programme in collaboration with College
of Agricultural Banking, Pune

2. Customized Workshop on Derivatives in
collaboration with Derivium Capital and
Securities Pvt. Ltd.

Annual Retreat Conference

In order to promote participative management,
the Bank organized an Annual Retreat
Conference of all its officers. Important issues

20.3

20.4

21.
21.1

21.2

like corporate business plan, medium term
strategy and annual Budget were some of the
areas which were discussed. Ideas were also
invited from the staff for identifying new areas
of sectoral improvement and business
development with specific suggestions about
implementing them.

Compliance with Reservation Policy

The Reservation Policy of the Government of India
is being adhered to by the Bank. A Liaison Officer
is functioning in the Bank. Post based rosters are
being maintained by the Bank as per the
guidelines of the Government of India in this
regard.

Recruitment Policy

The Bank formulated a New Recruitment and
Selection Policy. The policy has been designed
to provide the Bank with a flexible framework
for recruiting staff in an effective, efficient and
fair manner. The policy provides for a wide range
of recruitment channels and makes possible
lateral recruitment at various levels based on the
staff requirements of the Bank.

During the year, recruitment was conducted for
18 posts in various scales from Scale Il to Scale
VII. The recruitment was done to fill existing gaps
in these scales. The selected candidates are
expected to join in the Bank’s service soon.

Rajbhasha

National Housing Bank has always been
committed towards the successful and effective
implementation of the Official Language policy
of the Government of India and has initiated
suitable and effective measures for the progress
of Hindi in the Bank.

Adherence to the provisions laid down by the
Government of India viz. replying to all Hindi/
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g A

Dr. Y.V Reddy, Governor, RBI giving away the prize for the Bank’s Hindi Magazine “Awas Bharti” to Shri Ranjan Kumar Barun,
Manager, at the function held in RBI Central Office. Also seen in the picture - Shri S. Sridhar, CMD.

bilingual communications in Hindi, issuance of
documents under Section 3(3) in bilingual form,
bilingual printing of reports and publications of
the Bank, bilingual printing of stationery items
etc. are effectively implemented and being
monitored. Hindi workshops are conducted at
regular intervals and ‘Hindi Chetna Maas' is also
celebrated to promote the usage of Hindi in the
day to day functioning of the Bank. During the
celebrations of the Hindi Chetna month from
August 16, 2006 to September 14, 2006, six
competitions were held wherein a large number
of officers of the Bank participated with great
zeal. A Hindi documentary film on “Yoga” and a
seminar on “Hindi books and magazines and use
of Hindi” were organized during the year. Various
incentive schemes were also launched from time
to time so as to increase the usage of Hindi by
the officers. The Departmental Rajbhasha
Implementation Committee of the Bank meets
once in three months to review the progress in
usage of Hindi in the Head Office and the Regional
Office at Mumbai and adopt suitable measures
to improve the usage.

21.3 ‘Awas Bharati’, the quarterly Hindi magazine

22.

221

published by the Bank has been enriched both in
terms of content and readers. The magazine won
fourth prize in a All India level competition
organized by the Reserve Bank of India for the
year 2005-06. In another competition organized
by Delhi Bank Nagar Rajbhasha Implementation
Committee, the magazine has been awarded
second position.

Miscellaneous
Knowledge Centre at NHB

In order to meet the knowledge requirements of
the Bank, a Knowledge Centre was established
as a key resource centre at Head Office. From
modest beginning made in 1989, the Knowledge
Centre has grown quite impressively over the last
18 years. The Knowledge Centre has been
established to facilitate knowledge generation and
application through its effective dissemination. The
Knowledge Centre therefore, acts as the main
learning resource centre of the Bank and provides
services and facilities to meet the requirements
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of the Bank officers, research students etc. for
training and research work related to housing and
other related fields. As on date, a core collection
of over 3800 English/Hindi books are available on
housing, investment, banking, economics,
architecture etc. In addition, Knowledge Centre is
also subscribing to more than 50 journals related
to technical & non technical subjects.

Opening of Representative Offices

With a view to enhance its outreach, the Bank
has opened a representative office at Hyderabad.
The representatives will act as business
development officers for the Southern region. The
Bank is planning to open other representative
offices shortly.

Future Outlook

During the year under report, the Bank sought
to reposition itself as the prime institution
developing the housing finance market with
focus on sustainable and inclusive financing.
Innovation and responsiveness have been
emphasised. At the same time, institutional
credit has been sought to be catalysed for the
unserved and undeserved. Reconciliation of
development objectives with the commercial
compulsions of the financial sector poses a
major challenge.

Four issues arise in this regard. These are
availability, affordability, risk mitigation, enabling
legal, poilcy framework. Adequate availability of
finance for the poor has always been a challenge
in most countries. In India, for instance, whilst
housing finance from banks has recorded a CAGR
of 46.4% over the period 2000-2006, the number
of accounts, a proxy for number of houses has
recorded a CAGR of only 12.3%, indicating that
growth is value driven and not volume driven. Thus
how can the poor get access to formal institutional

23.3

23.4
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finance for housing? While traditionally the banking
system has been the major provider of housing
finance, can other segments of the financial
system such as the capital markets, micro finance
institutions, community organisations, be tapped
in a significant and sustained manner? What could
be various financial products and investments that
can deliver formal finance for housing to the poor?
Should there be a new financial architecture?
These are all issues that need to be studied.

Affordability is the other major concern in
designing financial produts for the poor. It is so
in the case of housing as well, accentuated by
the long tenor required of the housing finance as
compared to livelihood or enterprise finance.
Affordability covers not only the cost of credit
but also cost of the house, as with increasing
property prices, the quantum of finance becomes
so high as to make a loan on normal commercial
terms unaffordable for the poor. There is also the
margin money that the beneficiary has to
contribtue. Can government subsidies be
considered and if so, how targeted and minimised
so that a 'credit culture' can be encouraged?

In this regard, risk mitigation assumes importance
in smoothening the flow of institutional finance to
the poor. In developing countries, risk mitigation
mechanisms are at a nascent stage. In India itself,
they are practically absent although in other
financial market segments risk mitigation
mechanisms are working. Mechanism such as
mortgage insurance/guarantee, credit guarantee
funds, etc. would need to be put in place. Title
indemnity is also another risk mitigation tool that
needs to be studied.

Last but not the least, the role of the State. There
is no gainsaying the fact that in any financing or
development initiative, the Government has a
major role to play. Accordingly, in devising
possible solutions to pro-poor housing finance,
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23.6

the Government will need to be present in
significant measure. Government role could be
in the form of providing viability gap funding, risk
mitigation, addressing land tenure issues, urban
and regional planning, fiscal issues, setting up
and maintaining reliable property records and
suitable database, ensuring that appropriate legal
framework is in place and is enforceable.

The US subprime mortgage market crisis has cast
its shadow on the global financial sector. While

the Indian mortgage market is not affected, the
need to stick to fundamentals has been
reinforced. Finance for low income housing does
not in any way imply departure from due
prudence and risk management. Suitable
financing and risk mitigating structures with
supportive government and regulatory policies
would need to be put in place. The Bank is taking
the lead in such an endeavour in collaboration
with the market players and professional experts.

Shri S.Sridhar, CMD with Dr. A.PJ. Abdul Kalam, President of India
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of National
Housing Bank (General and Special Fund) as at 30" June
2007 and the Profit and Loss Account annexed thereto
for the year ended on that date. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audited in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We report as follows:

(a)  The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account
have been drawn up in accordance with the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and regulations
framed there under for General Fund and for
Special Fund in accordance with the provisions
of National Housing Bank (Slum Improvement and
Low Cost Housing Fund) Regulations, 1993.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Bank so
far as appear from our examinations of those
books.

(c) The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account
dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account.

44

We further report that:

1.

We are unable to form an opinion on the
treatment given by the Bank in respect of the
following matters and the impact that the same
may have on the accounts of the Banks as the
final decisions have yet to be delivered by the
Courts and the sums determined.

a)  Rs.237.06 Crore received from State Bank
of Saurashtra pursuant to a decree by the

Special Court and others and included in
“Other Liabilities” [Note No.16.1)]

b)  Rs.149.37 Crore appearing as “Other
Assets” representing Rs.95.40 Crores paid
by the Bank to State Bank of Saurashtra
and Rs.53.97 crore paid by the Bank to
Custodians pursuant to the orders of the
Special Court [Note No.16.2)].

c)  The bank has not identified impairment of
assets listed in the Accounting Standard -
28(AS-28). Accordingly, no provision has
been made. (Refer Note No.24 of Notes to
the Accounts).

d) RBI has increased provisioning
requirement on standard advances on
residential housing loans beyond Rs.20.00
lacs from 0.40% to 1% for Scheduled
Commercial Banks. NHB is following RBI
norms on asset classification and its
provisioning. As a prudent measure, NHB
has made provision @ 1 per cent on the
loans outstanding of Rs.568.55 crores
under direct lending (i.e. project finance).
As regards such additional provision on its
refinance standard assets, the matter is
under correspondence with RBI (Provision
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amount un-ascertainable). Refer Note No. have been given to us and we have found them
25 of Notes to the Accounts). to be satisfactory.

2. Further, subject to our comments in para 1 above, i) The Balance Sheet of the Bank read with
in our opinion and to the best of our information notes thereon & Significant Accounting
and according to the explanations given to us policies, is full fair Balance Sheet
and as shown by the books of the Bank the said containing all the necessary particulars and
accounts give the information required by the is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true
National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and regulations and fair view of the affairs of the Bank as
framed there under in the manner so required at 30" June 2007; and

and in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted, we report that i)~ The Profit and Loss Account read with

notes thereon and Significant Accounting
3.  Where we have called for information and policies, shows a true balance of profit of
explanations, such information and explanations the Bank for the year ended on that date.

For D. Singh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
(Ms. Simran Singh)
Partner
Date: October 22, 2007 M. No. F-98641

Place: New Delhi
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National Housing Bank
Balance Sheet

Previous Year Liabilities Schedules Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
450.00 1. Capital I 450.00
1,287.74 2. Reserves Il 1,389.07
0.00 3. Profit & Loss Account Il 0.00
11,465.48 4. Bonds and Debentures v 9,083.27
400.00 5. Subordinated Debts 400.00
4,993.76 6. Borrowings vV 8,995.68
18.72 1. Deferred Tax Liability (net) 76.06
599.29 8. Current Liabilities and Provisions Vi 820.85
272.49 9. Other Liabilities-Security Transactions 1991-92 Vil 272.49
41.34 10. HLA deposits with Banks & HFCs - As per contra
(Refer Note No. 21.5) 14.02
19,588.82 TOTAL 21,501.44
187.70 Contingent Liability Xl 200.54
Notes forming part of Accoutns XIv
Sd/- Sd/-
A. P. Saxena R. S. Garg
Assistant General Manager General Manager
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Surindra Kumar R. V. Verma S. Sridhar
Executive Director Executive Director Chairman & Managing Director
Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
Vidyadhar K. Phatak Dr. Errol D'Souza R. V. Shastri Jayshree A. Vyas
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Shyamala Gopinath Lakshmi Chand Dr. H.S Anand Amitabh Verma
Sd/- Sd/-
Nilam Sawhney M.V.PC. Sastry Mohinder Singh

New Delhi, October 22,2007
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as at 30th June, 2007

Previous Year Assets Schedules Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
2,157.94 Cash and Bank Balances VI 972.01
424.33 Investments IX 288.23
16,363.20 Loans and Advances X 19,571.85
24.25 Fixed Assets Xl 23.37
5717.76 Other Assets Xl 631.96

41.34 HLA deposits with banks & HFCs - as per contra
(out of this Rs.1.23 crore used as automatic refinance) 14.02
19,588.82 TOTAL 21,501.44

As per our attached Report of even date

For D. Singh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
(Ms. Simran Singh)
Partner
M. No. F-98641
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Profit & Loss Account

Previous Year Expenditure Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
979.88 1. Interest 1,213.19
4.28 2. Staff Salaries, Allowances and Terminal benefits 4.45
0.17 3. Directors” & Committee Members fees and Expenses 0.08
0.09 4. Audit Fees 0.06
0.95 5. Rent, Taxes, Electricity and Insurance 0.96
0.29 6. Postage, Telegrams, Telex and Telephones 0.27
0.06 1. Law Charges 0.13
0.44 8. Stationery, Printing, Advertisement etc. 0.72
2.32 9. Depreciation 2.39
8.81 10. Brokerage, Guarantee Fee other finance Charges 3.75
0.25 11. Stamp duty (Refer Note No. 23) 2.03
0.83 12. Travelling Expenses 1.14
5.02 13. Other Expenditure 5.03
0.05 14. Depreciation on Investment 0.03
0.05 15. Loss on Sale of Securities 0.00
2.41 16. Loss on Revaluation of foreign Deposits & Borrowings 6.57
33.88 17. Provision for Standard Assets (Refer Note No. 25) 16.24
17.94 18. Provision for Bad Debts/u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) of IT Act, 1961 10.75

@ 19. Wealth Tax 0.07

8.30 20. Deferred Tax 0.00
51.39 21. Income Tax 69.20
0.48 22. Fringe Benefit Tax 0.18
86.39 23. Balance of Profit c/d 114.31
1,204.28 TOTAL 1,451.55
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Previous Year

Current Year

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
0.00 24, Provision for Stamp duty (Refer Note No. 23) 13.11
0.19 25. Transfer to Staff Benovelent Fund 0.22
0.22 26. Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve 0.00
54.22 27. Transfer to Reserve Fund 61.71
5.00 28. Transfer to Taxation Reserve 0.00

24.29 29. Transfer to Special Reserve in terms of
Section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 30.20
1.41 30. Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 9.15
91.33 TOTAL 114.39

@ Amount less than Rs. 0.50 lakh
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
A. P. Saxena R. S. Garg Surindra Kumar R.V.Verma S. Sridhar

Assistant General Manager

Directors

Vidyadhar K. Phatak

Sd/-
Shyamala Gopinath

Sd/-
Nilam Sawhney

New Delhi, October 22, 2007

General Manager ~ Executive Director ~ Executive Director Chairman & Managing Director

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Errol D'Souza R. V. Shastri Jayshree A. Vyas
Sd/- Sd/-
Lakshmi Chand Dr. H.S Anand Amitabh Verma

Sd/-
M.V.PC. Sastry

Mohinder Singh
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for the year ended 30th June, 2007

Previous Year Income Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
1. Interest on Loans & Advances and Bank Deposits
938.24 a) Loans & Advances 1,275.91
232.97 b)  Bank Deposits 149.62 1,425.53
3.46 2. Income from Investments 3.89
5.93 3. Other Income (including income from IRS
Hedge of Rs. 0.06 crore) 1.19
20.27 4, Profit on sale of Investments 11.37
@ 5. Profit on sale of fixed Assets @
2.03 6. Gain on Forward Exchange Contract (net)
(Refer Note No. 14.3) 5.51
1.12 1. Provisions no longer required written back 1.33
0.26 8. Provisons and Contingencies
(Excess Provision on Investments reversed) 0.08
0.00 9. Deferred Tax (Net) 2.65
1,204.28 TOTAL 1,451.55
86.39 10. Balance of Profit brought down 114.31
0.00 11. Guarantee fee commission for earlier years 0.08
4,94 12. Transfer from Taxation Reserve 0.00
91.33 114.39

@ Amount less than Rs. 0.50 lakh
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As per our attached Report of even date

For D. Singh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
(Ms. Simran Singh)

Partner
M. No. F-98641
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at 30th June, 2007

Previous Year Schedules Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE - |
CAPITAL
450.00 1. Authorised 450.00
450.00 2. Issued and Paid-up
(wholly subscribed by the Reserve Bank of India) 450.00
450.00 450.00
SCHEDULE - I
RESERVES (Rs. Crore)
Description Opening Additions Deductions Closing
Balance Balance
1. Reserve Fund 804.27 61.71 0.00 865.98
2. Special Fund (Slum Improvement 221.11 9.15 0.00 230.26
& Low Cost Housing Fund)
3. Special Reserve in terms of Section 36(1) (viii) 234.00 30.20 0.00 264.20
of Income Tax Act, 1961
4. Investment Fluctation Reserve 20.08 0.00 0.00 20.08
5.  Taxation Reserve 1.45 0.00 0.00 1.45
6.  Staff Benevolent Fund 0.83 0.27 0.00 1.10
Total 1,287.74 101.33 0.00 1,389.07
Previous Year Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE - I
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
0.67 1. Opening Balance of Net Profit 0.00
0.67 a) Less: Amount transferred to RBI 0.00
1.41 b) Add: Balance as per P&L account annexed 9.15
c) Less : Profit of Slum Improvement & Low Cost Housing
1.41 Fund Transferred 9.15 0.00
0.00 0.00
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Previous Year

Current Year

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE - IV
BONDS AND DEBENTURES
368.00 1. Bonds (Guarnateed by GOI) 343.00
0.00 2. Zero Coupon Bonds 174.20
0.00 3. 8.10% NHB Bonds 145.00
4. Priority Sector Bonds
950.00 i. Tax-free Bonds 800.00
1,689.48 ii. Taxable Bonds 1,368.83
509.00 iii. Special Series Bonds 491.60 2,660.43
7,949.00 5. Capital Gain Bonds 5,760.64
11,465.48 9,083.27
SCHEDULE - V
BORROWINGS
1. From Reserve Bank of India
50.00 (a) Out of National Housing Credit (Long Term Operations) Fund 50.00
34.23 (b) Others (Line of credit) 31.59
2. From Other Sources
4,431.30 (a) In India 8,503.63
478.23 (b) Outside India 410.46
4,993.76 8,995.68
SCHEDULE - Vi
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
265.61 1. Interest Payable 302.77
1.99 2. Provision for Retirement Benefits 2.89
208.61 3. Provision for Income Tax / Wealth Tax / Fringe Benefit Tax 278.04
65.47 4. Provision for Standard Assets 81.7
30.07 5. Provision for Bad Debts u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) of IT Act, 1961 40.82
0.31 6. Provision for HLA Deposits 0.25
0.00 1. Provision for Stamp Duty 14.47
15.55 8. Redeemed Debentures Payable 88.80
11.68 9. Others 11.10
599.29 820.85
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Previous Year

Current Year

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE - VI
OTHER LIABILITIES
2317.20 Unsettled transactions of 1991-92 2317.20
35.29 Interest Payable on unsettled transaction 35.29
272.49 272.49
SCHEDULE - Vil
CASH & BANK BALANCES
@ Cash/ Cheques in Hand @
0.02 Balance with Reserve Bank of India 0.03
Balance with other Banks
a. In India:
18.42 (i) Current Accounts 57.65
1,640.84 (ii) Term Deposit with Banks / Fls
(Rs.250 crore pledged with
Banks for LOC/Term Loan arrangement) 4817.717
0.00 (iii) Term Deposits-Staff Benevolvent Fund 0.78 546.20
b. Outside India:
498.66 Term Deposit with Banks/Fls 425.78
2,157.94 @ Amount less than Rs. 0.50 lakh 972.01
SCHEDULE - IX
INVESTMENTS
(at cost or market value whichever is less)
1.84 GOI Dated Securities 1.90
5.80 Stocks of Housing Finance Institutions 5.80
0.53 Stocks of Building Material Company 0.53
0.53 Less : Depreciation 0.53 0.00
Stocks, shares, bonds, debentures and
security of other Institutions
370.60 a) Units of Mutual Funds 229.80
1.19 b) Investment in Pass Through Certificates
of the SPV Trust of which NBH is Trustee 0.83
c) Other Investments
40.00 i) Subordinated Bonds 45.00
4.90 ii) Others 4.90 49.90 280.53
424.33 @ Amount less than Rs. 0.50 lakh 288.23
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Previous Year

Current Year

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE - X
LOANS AND ADVANCES
I Refinance
1. Housing Finance Institutions:
4,912.04 (a) Housing Finance Companies 4,799.58
166.82 (b) Co-operative Housing Finance Societies 150.24
2. Scheduled Banks: 13,879.11
10,430.46 (a) Commercial Banks 13,815.00
2.36 (b) Regional Rural Banks 1.76
86.07 (c) Urban Co-operative Banks 62.35
283.86 3. State Co-operative Agriculture Rural
Development Banks/Land Development Banks 198.08
Il Direct Lending
505.40 4. Housing Boards/Devp. Authorities, etc. 568.55
3.63 /] Others (Takeover Loans) 3.39
16,390.64 Gross Loans & Advances 19,598.95
27.44 Less : Provisions for Non Performing Assets 27.10
16,363.20 Net Loans and Advances 19,571.85
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Previous Year

Current Year

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE - XII
OTHER ASSETS
Interest Receivable
93.21 (a) Bank Deposits 44.66
4.00 (b) Investments 1.13 45.79
Advances, Receivables, Advance Tax, TDS etc.
1.72 (a) Staff Loans & Advances 1.68
320.38 (b) Advance Tax, TDS and Payment of Disputed Tax
Demand, etc. 396.22
3.60 (c) Exchange Loss on Foreign
Borrowings recoverable from GOI 3.11
(d) Miscelleneous Recoverable
1.05 Considered Doudtful 0.46
1.05 Less : Provisions 0.46 0.00
2.46 (e) Prepaid Expense 2.49
1.52 (f) Deposit with CCIL 2.02
0.41 (g) Others 0.69 406.21
1.09 Forward Exchange Contract 3.05
149.37 Unsettled transactions of 1991-92 149.37
0.00 Deferred Discount on Zero Coupon Bonds (Refer Note 12.2) 27.54
577.76 631.96
SCHEDULE - XInl
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Refer under Note)
33.37 Income Tax Para 19.4 42.19
41.34 Deposit under Home Loan Account Scheme (HLAS) Para 21.5 14.02
90.97 Guarantee given for Mortgage Backed
Securitisation (MBS) issue 94.38
21.97 Liability on account of Forward
Exchange Contract Para 14.4 49.95
0.05 Court Cases other than scam related matter 0.00
187.70 200.54
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Schedule XIV

Notes forming parts of the accounts

(A) Significant Accounting Policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

General

The Bank prepares its accounts on accrual basis
in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles.

Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account have
been drawn in accordance with the requirements
of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and
National Housing Bank General Regulations, 1988
framed there under.

The preparation of financial statements requires
that management makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported income and expense
during the reporting period. Management
believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Interest on loans and advances, except in respect
of non-performing assets, is accounted for on
accrual basis. In respect of non-performing
assets, interest is accounted for on receipt basis.

Certain items of income (say, prepayment levy,
penalty, miscellaneous receipts etc) are
recognized on cash basis as per accounting
standard (AS-9). However, such income is not
considered to be material.

3.1.

3.2.

3.2.1.

3.2.2.

Investments
Classification

Investments are classified into “Held for Trading”,
“Available for Sale” and “Held to Maturity”
categories as below:

(a)  Theinvestments that are acquired with the
intention to trade by taking advantage of
the short-term price/interest rate
movements are classified under “Held for
Trading”. These investments are held under
this category upto 90 days from the date
of acquisition.

(b)  Investments which are intended to be held
up to maturity are classified as “Held to
Maturity”.

(c) Investments which are not classified in
either of the above categories are
classified as “Available for Sale”.

Valuation:
In determining acquisition cost of investment:

(a) brokerage/commission received on
subscriptions is deducted from the cost
of securities.

(b)  brokerage and transfer charges incurred
at the time of acquisition are capitalized.

(c) Interestaccrued up to the date of acquisition
of securities (i.e. broken period interest) is
excluded from the acquisition cost.

Individual scrips classified under “Held for Trading
“category, where market quotations are available,
are valued at lower of book value or market value.
Depreciation, if any, is aggregated category-wise
as per the classification of investments
prescribed by RBI and recognized in the profit
and loss account, while appreciation is ignored.
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3.2.3.

3.24.

3.2.5.

3.2.6.

3.2.1.

4.1
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The book value of the individual scrip is not
changed.

Investments under “Held to Maturity” category
are carried at acquisition cost. Wherever the book
value is higher than the face value/redemption
value, the excess amount is amortized equally
over the remaining period of maturity.

Investments under “Available for Sale” category
are valued at cost or market price whichever is
lower. Where market quotations are not
available, market value for this purpose is arrived
at on the basis of realizable price computed as
per Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives
Association of India/Primary Dealers Association
of India / RBI guidelines. Depreciation, if any, is
aggregated category-wise as per the
classification of investments prescribed by RBI
and recognized in the profit and loss account,
while appreciation is ignored. The book value of
the individual scrip is not changed.

Treasury bills and commercial paper are valued
at cost.

In respect of debentures/bonds etc., where
income/principal is not serviced, provision for
depreciation is made as per norms of RBI.

Investment in equity shares of housing finance
companies / building material industries is valued
at cost or market value or on the basis of NAV (net
asset value) as ascertained from the latest balance
sheet of the company where such companies are
not listed whichever is less and in the absence
thereof at the rate of Re. 1 per company.

Loans and advances

Subscription to Special Rural Housing Debentures
(SRHDs) of State Co-operative Agricultural &
Rural Development Banks (ARDBs) / Land
Development Banks (LDBs) in respect of loans

4.2

for rural housing by their branches/primary banks
is shown under Loans and Advances.

Assets representing loans and advances are
classified based on record of recovery as
Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss
assets. Provision is made for assets as per the
Guidelines issued to refinancing institutions by
RBI or as modified by the Board as under:-

i. Standard
Assets - 0.40%

ii. Sub-standard
Assets - 10%

iii. Doubtful - 100% of unsecured portion
Assets and 50% of the secured

portion of the assets
remaining outstanding for
less than three years /
100% in case of the assets
remaining outstanding for
more than three years

Loss Assets - 100%

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

Advances and Investment are stated net of
provision.

Provision for standard assets as per the RBI
Guidelines and provision u/s 36(1)(vii a) (c) of
Income Tax Act, 1961 for bad and doubtful assets
is grouped in the Balance Sheet under ‘Current
Liabilities and Provisions’.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Assets costing below Rs.1000 are charged to
revenue.

Depreciation on various assets is provided on the
following basis:-
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Assets Method of Depreciation Rate (%)
Premises Written down value 5
Furniture & Fixtures Straight Line 10
Other Assets Straight Line 20

5.4

9.5

Depreciation on addition to assets is calculated
for full period irrespective of the date of
acquisition.

As separate valuation of land in the value of
premises is not available, depreciation on value
of premises (including land) has been charged in
respect of leasehold premises of the Bank.

Staff Benefits:

Liability for Gratuity, Pension and Leave
Encashment is determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation at the end of the period.
Incremental liability is provided for by charging
to the profit and loss account.

Pre-paid expenses

Pre-paid expenditure of Rs.1 lakh and below
relating to maintenance contract, insurance,
subscription/membership fee etc., is charged to
current period expenditure.

Income Tax

Provision for Income Tax for the year has been
arrived at after due consideration of legal opinion
obtained on relevant issues.

Deferred Tax

Provision for taxation is made on the basis of
estimated tax liability with adjustment for

10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

deferred tax assets and liabilities in terms of the
Accounting Standard on ‘Accounting for Taxes
on Income’ (AS 22) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Foreign Exchange Transactions.

As per accounting standard (AS-11) (revised
2003) on Accounting for the Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India; following
accounting treatment is given to foreign
exchange transaction.

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are
revalued at the exchange rate notified by
Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India
(FEDAI) as at the close of the year and
resultant gain/loss is charged to profit and
loss account. Exchange difference on
revaluation of outstanding foreign exchange
contract is recognized in the profit and loss
account.

Income and Expenditure Items are translated at
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction.

Interest rate swaps which hedges interest
bearing asset or liability is accounted for on
accrual basis. Gain or losses on the termination
of swaps are recognized over the remaining
contractual life of the swap or the remaining life
of the asset/liability; which ever is shorter.
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(B)

11.

1.1

11.2

12.
12.1

NOTES

Fixed Assets

Registration formalities are in progress in
respect of commercial property situated at India
Habitat Centre, Lodhi Road, New Delhi and
residential properties situated at Jangpura
Extension, New Delhi and at Tilak Nagar,
Mumbai having gross value (i.e., acquisition
cost) of Rs.24.21 crore.

In respect of the office space acquired at India
Habitat Centre (IHC), Lodhi Road, New Delhi,
the exact cost has not been apportioned by
IHC among the different allottees. As such, a
sum of Rs.14.12 crore has been capitalised by
the Bank on the basis of payments made to
[HC.

Domestic Borrowings

Capital Gain Bonds: Central Government in its
Budget of 2002-03 had allowed NHB to issue
Bonds under section 54 (EC) of Income Tax Act
1961 known as Capital Gain Bonds. Accordingly,
NHB launched Capital Gain Bonds Issue 2002 on
August 14, 2002 and also in subsequent years
till 2005-06. The permission of the Central
Government however, has been withdrawn
effective from April 1, 2006. The cost of resources
during the year has shot up due to phasing out of
Capital Gain Bonds.

12.2 Zero Coupon Bonds: NHB has issued Zero
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Coupon Bonds (ZCBs) for a face value of
Rs.174.20 crore at a discount rate of 8.10%;
discounted value being Rs.137.87 crore. These
bonds were issued for a period of three years
with a put/call options at the end of two years.
The difference between face value and
discounted value being the total discount

13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

amounting to Rs.36.33 crore has been
capitalized by credit to bond liability account to
reflect the face value of the bonds. The discount
is to be amortised over the tenure of the bonds
and a sum of Rs.8.79 crore has been amortised
during the current year ending June 30, 2007

External Borrowings

Under the Housing Guarantee Programme of
USAID, the Bank had raised a loan of US $25
million in the US Capital Market in the year 1990-
91. The loan, shown under borrowings from
outside India, is repayable in forty equal half
yearly installments commencing from October,
2001 and the balance of Rs.34.63 crore as on
30.06.2007 is shown along with the borrowings
from outside India. Government of India had
guaranteed the loan and also agreed to bear the
exchange loss, if any. The foreign currency funds
received under USAID Programme has been
parked with Government of India against rupee
funds made available by the Government to
NHB. Consequently, the exchange risk on the
foreign currency funds is being borne by the
Government of India. In view of this, the foreign
currency funds borrowed from USAID have not
been revalued.

The Central Government has guaranteed the
repayment of principal and interest in respect of
Bonds issued by the Bank in the earlier years.
An accumulated provision of a sum of Rs.3.41
crore (provision made during the year Rs.0.20
crore) has been provided for and is shown under
‘current liabilities and provision'.

The Bank had borrowed US Dollar 120.40 million
(equivalent to Rs.564 crore outstanding of which
Rs. 375.83 crore as on 30.06.2007) from Asian
Development Bank (ADB) and the same has been
guaranteed by the Government of India. In terms
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13.4

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

of the agreements entered with Bank of India,
Canara Bank and EXIM Bank, NHB deposited the
dollar funds (USD 120 million) in the overseas
branches of these banks. The said deposits are
to be utilized for repayment of borrowings from
ADB. NHB raised Rs.564 crore by issue of special
series of priority sector bonds and these bonds
have been subscribed by the aforesaid banks/
EXIM Bank with whom the above US Dollar
deposit have been kept.

The Bank refunded an amount of US $13 million
to ADB to be redrawn later. However, the un-
availed loan of US $13 million was cancelled.

Revaluation of Foreign Deposits
and Borrowings/Forward
Exchange Contracts

Net loss of Rs.6.57 crore on revaluation of foreign
deposits and borrowings has been charged to
profit and loss account under head “Loss on
Revaluation of foreign Deposits and Borrowings”.
Premium/ discount has not been recognized
separately.

In view of para 13.1, the foreign currency funds
borrowed from USAID have not been revalued.

As on June 30, 2007, NHB has two outstanding
forward sale contracts for Rs.49.95 crore (USD
12.27 million) for which there are no probable
inflow of foreign currency funds as on the
maturity date of contract. NHB has marked these
outstanding contracts to its market values and
consequently booked a notional profit of Rs.3.05
crore on such contracts to the credit of its profit
and loss account. Further, during the year ended
June 30, 2007 NHB has booked an actual profit
of Rs.3.48 crore on cancellation of the forward
sale contracts of USD 4.6 million due to absence
of inflow of foreign currency funds.

14.4

15.
15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

The contingent liability of Rs.49.95 crore has on
account of forward exchange contract is stated
at the rates of exchange notified by FEDAI at the
year end.

Employee’s Benefits (AS-15)

As per National Housing Bank (Employees’)
Pension Regulations, 2003, the Bank provides
for pension, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering all employees who have opted for
pension plan. The plan provides a monthly
pension payment to vested employee at
retirement or termination of employment. During
the year the bank has charged Rs.15.18 lakh in
the profit and loss account towards pension
fund.

The Bank has recognised the following amounts
in the Profit and Loss Account towards
contributions to Provident Fund.

Providend Fund Rs.2.82 lakhs

In accordance with NHB (Officers’) Service
Regulations, 1997 the Bank provides for gratuity,
a defined benefit retirement plan covering all
employees. The plan provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement or
termination of employment based on the
respective employee’s salary and the years of
employment with the Bank.

Methodology used in actuary calculation-Actuary
has used the Projected Unit Credit Method to
assess the plan’s liabilities including those related
to death and service.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of
present value of defined benefit obligation for
gratuity benefits is given below:
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(Rupees in lakhs)
As of 30" June, 2007

Change in benefit obligations Amount
Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year 79.49
Current Service cost 9.42
Interest cost 5.96
Actuarial Gain on obligations 45.41
Benefits paid (12.26)
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year 128.02

(Rupees in lakhs)
As of 30" June, 2007

Change in plan assets

Amount

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year*

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial Gain

Benefits paid

Employer contributions

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

*The Bank has not funded the liability as on 30.06.2007.As such there is no fair value of assets.

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Liability at the end of the year 128.02
Net asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (148.85)
Expense recognised for the year

Current Service cost 9.42
Interest cost 5.96
Expected return on plan assets —
Actuarial (gain)/loss 45.41
Net gratuity expense included in ‘Payments to and

provision for employees” under “Operating Expenses” 60.79
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15.6 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present value of defined benefit obligation for Leave
Encashment is given below:

(Rupees in lakhs)
As of 30" June, 2007

Change in benefit obligations

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year 75.98
Current Service cost 4.99
Interest cost 5.70
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 0.40
Benefits paid (13.20)
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year 13.817

(Rupees in lakhs)
As of 30" June, 2007

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year*

Expected return on plan assets E—

Actuarial Gain _

Benefits paid —

Employer contributions —

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year —_—

* The Bank has not funded the liability as on 30.06.2007.As such there is no fair value of assets.

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year _
Liability at the end of the year 13.87
Net asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (93.43)

Expense recognised for the year

Current Service cost 4.99

Interest cost 5.70

Expected return on plan assets —

Actuarial (gain)/loss 0.40

Net Leave Encashment expense included in ‘Payments to and
provision for employees” under “Operating Expenses” 11.09
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Investment details of plan assets
The Bank has not funded the liability as on 30.06.2007.As such there is no fair value of assets.

Actuarial assumptions used in Gratuity and Leave Encashment

Discount Rate 1.5 % p.a.

Salary Increases 5% p.a.

Expected rate of return N.A.

Mortality Published rates under the LIC (1994-96)
mortality tables

Retirement Age The employees in all cadre retire at 60 years

Withdrawal The experience is not yet stable.

Hence no rate has been applied.

15.7 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present value of defined benefit obligation for Medical
benefits is given below:
(Rupees in lakhs)
As of 30" June, 2007

Change in benefit obligations

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year 43.65
Current Service cost 2.38
Interest cost 3.27
Actuarial Gain obligations (4.65)

Benefits paid _

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year 44.65

(Rupees in lakhs)
As of 30" June, 2007

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year*

Expected return on plan assets E—

Actuarial Gain D

Benefits paid —

Employer contributions —

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year —_—

* The Bank has not funded the liability as on 30.06.2007. As such there is no fair value of assets.
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Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year —_—
Liability at the end of the year 44.65
Net asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (46.40)
Expense recognised for the year

Current Service cost 2.38
Interest cost 3.27
Expected return on plan assets —
Actuarial (gain)/loss (4.65)
Net Medical Benefit expense included in ‘Payments to and

provision for employees” under “Operating Expenses” 1.00

Investment details of plan assets

The Bank has not funded the liability as on 30.06.2007.As such there is no fair value of assets.

Actuarial assumptions used in Medical Benefits

Discount Rate 1.5 % p.a.

Medical Cost Increase Since upper limit of compensation is fixed, no
increase over & above is required.

Mortality Survival rates are used as per Latest Table LIC
(1996-98)
Morbidity It is experimental basis 20% of claim amount per

year per person is assumed to payable.

15.8 The above information is as certified by the
actuary and relied upon by the management.

15.9 Previous year’s figures have not been given since
this is the first year of adoption of this revised
AS-15.

16. Security Transactions of 1991-92

16.1 A sum of Rs.237.20 crore appearing in the
Balance Sheet under the head “Other Liabilities”

16.2

includes a sum of Rs.237.06 crore representing
the decreed amount received from State Bank of
Saurashtra (SBS) in a suit filed by NHB. This
amount will be adjusted on final disposal of the
appeal filed by SBS and NHB in the Supreme
Court.

The sum of Rs.149.37 crore appearing in the
Balance Sheet under the head “Other Assets”
represents the sum of Rs.95.40 crore paid by
the Bank to SBS during 1991-92 for purchase of
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16.3

18.
18.1

securities and Rs.53.97 crore paid by the Bank
to the custodian pursuant to the orders of the
special court. Both the amounts and interest
thereon, if any, will be adjusted on final disposal
of the appeal filed by the SBS and NHB in the
Supreme Court.

A sum of Rs.40.25 crore was appearing in the
books of NHB as unclaimed amount since 1991-
92. While passing a Decree in the year 1999 in
favour of NHB in the above suit against SBS, the
special Court noted this fact and directed NHB
to deposit a sum of Rs.40.22 crore with the
Custodian, which was duly deposited. Provision
of Rs. 35.29 crore for interest has been made on
the above sum from 1991-92 till date of deposit
with the Custodian and thereafter on the
difference amount Rs. 0.03 crore. It is being
shown under the head “other Liabilities” and will
be adjusted on final disposal of the appeal
pending in the Supreme Court as referred above.

Related Party Transactions

16.4 The disputes between NHB & SBI and NHB &

117.

Grindlays Bank have been settled and no claim
exists between the parties against each other,
However, any money to be recovered from the
assets of the late Sh. Harshad Mehta by SBI and
Grindlays Bank in accordance with the decrees
passed in their favour by the special court will be
shared by them with NHB in the agreed manner
and will be accounted for on actual receipt.

Segment Reporting

The main business of the National Housing Bank
is to promote and regulate housing finance
institutions and also to provide financial and other
support to such institutions. All other activities
of the Bank centre around the main business.
Hence, there are no separate reportable
segments as per the Accounting Standard on
“Segment Reporting” (AS 17) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

As per the Accounting Standard on “Related Party Disclosures” (AS 18) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the necessary disclosure is made as under:

S. No. Name of the Related Party

Nature of Relationship

1. Reserve Bank of India

Holding Company

2. Shri S. Sridhar

Key Management Personal

(Related party relationships are identified by the Bank)

18.2 The nature & volume of transactions of the Bank during the year with the above parties were as follows:
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(Rs./crore)
Particulars Holding Key Management
Company Personnel

Interest Income - -

Dividend received - -

Interest paid 4.55 -
Remuneration - 0.06
Receivable as on June 30, 2007 - -

Payable (borrowings) as on June 30, 2007 81.59 -
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19.
19.1

19.2

Income tax

In respect of the assessment years 2002-03 to
2004-05, the net income tax demand of Rs.72.23
crores has been raised by disallowing the
deduction claimed in respect of Special Reserve
created u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 .

The Bank has preferred an appeal in respect of
above demand. The disputed income tax demand
amounting to Rs.72.23 crore has been paid and
included in" other assets’ (Schedule-XII to
Balance Sheet). No provision has been made by
the Bank for the above demands. However, Bank
has created Deferred Tax liability in respect of

19.3

19.4

Special Reserve created u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income
Tax Act, 1961.

The assessment for the AY 2005-06 & 2006-07
are pending. Provision for income tax for AYs
2005-06, 2006-07 has been made after
considering the deduction under section
36(1)(viii) of Income tax Act, 1961 which was
disallowed by the Income Tax Authorities in the
earlier years.

The contingent liability on account of income tax
for Assessment years from 2002-03 to 2007-08
is worked out as per the details given below:

Asset Side (Taxes paid) : Amount (Rs. in crore)
Advance tax paid till 30.06.2007 216.16
TDS till 30.06.2007 107.15
Income Tax Demand paid but pending under Appeal 12.23
Total (A) 395.54
Liability Side (Provisions made) :

Provision for Income Tax till 30.06.2007 271.28
Deferred Tax Liability created for Special Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) of Income tax Act,1961 76.06
Total (B) 353.34
Contingent Liability (C)=(A) - (B) 42.20

20.
20.1

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities arising on
account of timing differences and which are
capable of reversal in subsequent periods are
recognized using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or subsequently enacted till the
date of the Balance Sheet. Deferred Tax Assets
are not recognized unless there is ‘virtual
certainty’ that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax
assets will be realized.

20..2 Upto June 30, 2007, the Bank has recorded net

20.3

deferred tax liability of Rs.76.06 crore which has
been shown in the Balance Sheet.

During the year Bank has not created deferred
tax liability on account of special reserve created
u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 1961. The
reduction in deferred tax liability from Rs.78.71
crore to Rs.76.06 crore amounting to Rs.2.65
crore during the year has been credited to the
profit and loss account towards deferred tax
(net).
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20.4 A composition of deferred tax assets and liabilities into major items is given below:

(Rs. in Crore)

Sr. No. | Particulars 30.06.2006 30.06.2007
Deferred Tax Assets:

1 Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 0.52 0.82

2 Medical aid to retired staff 0.15 0.16

3 Provision for guarantee fee 0.29 0.35
Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 0.96 1.33
Deferred Tax Liabilities:

1 Depreciation 0.91 1.05

2 Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act,1961 18.76 76.34
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) 79.67 77.39
Net Deferred Tax Liability (B-A) 18.1 76.06

21. Home Loan Account Scheme

21.1 The Home Loan Account Scheme (HLAS) was
launched by NHB with effect from July 1, 1989
all over the country and was operated through
scheduled banks and Housing Finance
Companies. The HLAS has been discontinued

effective from March 1, 2004.

21.2 Under the Scheme, the Banks /HFCs are required
to collect deposit from individuals specifically for
housing. As the deposits with Banks/HFCs under
HLAS was on behalf of NHB, the deposit
represents liability of NHB towards the depositors
and therefore, need to be accounted for in the
balance sheet of NHB as its liability to the

depositors.

21.3 The Scheme also provided options to the Banks/
HFCs either to utilize the funds as refinance from
NHB under any of its approved schemes or retain
the same with itself as demand and times liability.
Thus, the amount retained by Banks/HFCs either
as demand and time liability or under any
refinance scheme of NHB constituted the amount
recoverable by NHB from such institutions, and

therefore an asset of NHB.
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21.4 The assets and liabilities referred to above are
identical and have been shown as contra entries
in the Balance Sheet.

21.5 The deposits under HLAS held by the banks/HFCs
aggregating Rs.14.02 crore was disclosed in the
Balance Sheet as reported by the banks/HFCs

as on 31.03.2007.

21.6 India Housing Finance and Development Ltd., a
housing finance company in the private sector
which was one of the participating HFC for
mobilization of deposits under HLAS was
advised by NHB not to open new accounts/
accept fresh deposits under HLAS with effect
from 01.10.1994 due to serious financial
problem faced by it. NHB being the principal
under the scheme, was obliged to meet liability
to pay account holders their dues. The Bank
assessed the initial liability of Rs.0.49 crore as
against verifiable claimants of IHFD under HLAS
and made provision of the equal amount. As per
the approved procedure, claims for refund of
Rs.0.24 crore was paid till 30.06.2007 and
balance of Rs.0.25 crore stood as liability as on
30.06.2007.




T STErE o (4] NATIONAL HOUSING BANK

22. Investment - classification

As stated, investments are classified into “Held for trading”, “Available for sale” and “Held for Maturity”
categories as per the following details:

(Rs. in crore)

into demat securities in the form of promissory
notes or debentures as mentioned in the
respective Information Memorandums after
paying the consolidated stamp duty issue-wise
as per section 8A of the Indian Stamp Act, 1899.
As per the legal opinion obtained, a provision of
Rs.14.46 crores (including Rs.13.11 crore for
previous borrowings) has been made in the books
towards the stamp duty which will become

Categories of investment Investments As on As on
(at cost or market value 30.06.2006 | 30.06.2007
which ever is less)
Held to Maturity (HTM) a) GOl Dated Securities 1.85 1.90
b) Investment in Pass Through
Certificates of the SPV Trust of
which NHB is Trustee 1.18 0.83
c) Subordinated Bonds 40.00 45.00
d) Others 4.90 4.90
Sub-total 47.93 52.63
Available for Sale (AFS) a) Units of Mutual Funds 370.60 229.80
b) Stocks of Housing Finance Institutions 5.80 5.80
Sub-total 376.40 235.60
Total 424.33 288.23
23. Provision for stamp duty 24. Impairment of assets
NHB's borrowings towards issue of bonds during The Bank has not identified impairment of assets
the current and previous years of the value of listed in the accounting standard (AS-28).
Rs. 3517.02 crores outstanding as on 30.06.2007 Accordingly, no provision has been made.
are held with the depository in the form of letter
of allotment. These are required to be converted  25. Provision for standard assets

NHB has been following Reserve Bank of India’s
Directions on provisioning requirements. NHB has
made provision on standard assets @0.40 per
cent in terms of RBI Circular 2005-06/227 dated
December 2, 2005 to term lending and
refinancing institutions. RBI has recently
increased provisioning requirement on standard
advances on residential housing loans beyond

payable on conversion.

Rs.20 lakhs from 0.40 per cent to 1 per cent as
per their various circulars addressed to All
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26.

2].

27.1

70

Scheduled Commercial Banks. NHB has not
made any additional provision (amount un-
ascertained) as RBI has not issued any such
circular to All-India Term Lending and Refinancing
Institutions. However, as a prudent measure,
NHB has made provision @ 1 per cent on the
loans outstanding of Rs.568.55 crore under direct
lending (i.e., project finance). NHB is also in
correspondence with RBI on the applicability or
otherwise of increase provisioning requirement
on refinance loans beyond Rs.20 lakhs to it.

Guarantee fee payable

The Central Government has guaranteed the
repayment of principal and interest in respect of
bonds (under priority sector) issued by the Bank
in the earlier years. An accumulated provision of
a sum of Rs.3.41 crore (provision made during
the year Rs.0.20 crore) has been provided for
and is shown under ‘current liabilities and
provision'.

Consolidation of Special Fund with
the General Fund

The Voluntary Deposits (Immunities and
Exemptions) Act, 1991 was passed with the
objectives of providing certain immunities and
exemptions from direct taxes to persons making
voluntary deposits with the National Housing
Bank and exemptions from direct taxes in relation

21.2

28.

to such amounts. The amount so collected under
the Voluntary Deposits Scheme is required to be
keptin a Special Fund exclusively for the purpose
of financing slum clearance and low cost housing
for the poor. In terms of National Housing Bank
(Slum Improvement & Low Cost Housing Fund)
Regulations, 1993 Profit and Loss Account for
the year ended 30" June and Balance Sheet as
on that date are required to be prepared each
year in respect of the Special Fund and audited
by the Statutory Auditors appointed by the
Reserve Bank of India under Section 40 (1) of
the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

Accordingly, the Profit and Loss Account and the
Balance Sheet of the Special Fund have been
prepared as per the provisions of the National
Housing Bank (Slum Improvement & Low Cost
Housing Fund) Regulations, 1993 and attached
as Annexure to these financial statements. The
balance lying in the Special Fund is included under
the head “Reserves” in the Bank’s consolidated
Balance Sheet. Various assets and liabilities of
the Special Fund have also been grouped in the
consolidated Balance Sheets under the
respective heads.

Regrouping

Figures for the previous year have been re-
grouped, wherever necessary, so as to make
them comparable with those of the current year.




T STErE o (4] NATIONAL HOUSING BANK

29(a) Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2007

(Rs. In Crore)
A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account 114.31
Adjustments for non cash expenses and income

Provision for Tax (Includes Income Tax/ Fringe Benefit Tax and Wealth Tax) 69.45
Deferred Tax Liabilities (2.65)
Depreciation on fixed assets 2.39
Provision for Standard Assets and Contingencies 16.24
Provision for Stamp Duty 2.03
Provision for Bad Debts / u/s 36(1)(viia) of IT Act 10.75
Loss on difference in exchange rate on revaluation of deposits and borrowings 6.57
Depreciation on investments & amortization exp 0.03
Dividend on HFC's Equity (0.24)
Profit on Sale of Investments (11.37)
Provisions no longer required written back (1.33)
Gain on Forward Exchange Contract (1.96)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 204.22
Adjustments for Working Capital:

(Increase)/Decrease in Investments (4.96)
(Increase)/Decrease in PTC-Investments 0.36
(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits with Banks 114413
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances (3208.31)
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets 51.17
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities 87.20
Net cash from operating activities before taxes paid (1726.19)
Less : Income Taxes Paid (75.84)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS(A) | (1802.03)
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B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Additions to fixed Assets (0.88)
Profit on Sale of Investments 11.37
Dividend on HFC's Equity 0.24
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 10.73
Sale Proceeds 0.00
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES AFTER EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (B) 10.73
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments to Staff Benevolent Fund 0.05
Increase / (Decrease ) in Bonds & Debentures (2382.21)
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings 4079.62
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES (C) 1697.46
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (93.84)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st July 2006 391.45
Cash and cash equivalents as at June 30, 2007 297.61
29(b). Schedule to Cash & Cash Equivalents as on June 30, 2007
30.06.2007 30.06.2006
Cash in hand 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balances with RBI 0.03 0.02 0.01
Balances with other banks-current account 57.66 18.42 39.24
Cash realized on forward exchange contract 3.55 0.00 3.55
Investment in Mutual Funds-short term 229.80 370.60 (140.80)
Cash and cash equivalents before exchange rate adjustment 291.04 389.04 (98.00)
Effect of Exchange rate changes-Unrealized Loss 6.57 2.4 4.16
Cash and cash equivalents after exchange rate adjustment 297.61 391.45 93.84
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. Additional Disclosures as per RBI Guidelines

Capital:

CRAR 22.58%
- Core CRAR 20.44%
- Supplementary CRAR 2.14%

(In Rs. Crore)

Amount of subordinated debt raised and outstanding as Tier Il Capital

(Discounted Value,; Rs.80 crore) 400.00
Risk Weighted Assets:

- On Balance Sheet ltems 8796.97

- Off Balance Sheet ltems 119.40

Share-holding pattern as on the date of the Balance Sheet (%age of

share

holding)

- Reserve Bank of India 100%

Asset Quality & Credit Concentration:

Percentage of net NPAs to net Loans & Advances 0.00%

Amount and percentage of net NPAs under the prescribed asset
classification categories

Amount %age
Sub-Standard 0.00 0.00%
Doubtful 0.00 0.00%
Loss 0.00 0.00%
Total 0.00 0.00%

(In Rs. Crore)

Amount of provisions made during the year towards:
- Standard Assets 16.24
- Bad debts u/s 36(1)(viia) of the IT Act, 1961 10.75
- Investments 0.03
- Income tax & Fringe Benefit Tax 69.38

- Deferred Tax (net) 0.00
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h.  Movement in net NPAs As on As on
30/06/2006 | 30/06/2007
- Net NPAs Nil Nil
I.  Credit exposure as percentage to capital funds and Total Credit % age to % age to
as percentage to total assets, in respect of: o/s in Capital Total
Rs. Crore Fund Assets
- The largest single borrower 1100.00 94.43% 5.12%
- The largest borrower group 1302.37 64.44% 6.06%
- The 10 largest single borrowers 9660.25 477.99% 44.96%
- The 10 largest borrower groups$ 3843.53 190.18% 17.89%
$ NHB has only four borrower groups
(In Rs. Crore)
. Credit exposure to the five largest sectors/ industries as Total %age to
percentage to total loan assets Credit o/s total o/s
- Scheduled Commercial Banks 13815.00 70.59%
- Housing Finance Companies 4799.58 24.52%
- State Cooperative Agricultural Rural Development Banks/
Land Development Banks 198.08 1.01%
- Housing Boards/Developments Authorities 171.38 0.88%
- Co-operative Housing Finance Societies 150.24 0.77%
C. Liquidity:
k. Maturity Pattern of rupee assets and liabilities
|. Maturity Pattern of foreign currency assets and liabilities
(In Rs. Crore)
Items Less than | More Than | More Than | More Than | More Than Total
or equal a year upto | 3 year upto | 5 years upto 1 years
to 1 year 3 years 5 years 1 years
Rupee assets 8,928.58 1,840.42 3,209.60 982.63 3,275.45 24,236.68
Foreign currency assets 36.71 73.69 74.10 74.58 316.16 575.24
Total Assets 8,965.29 7,914.11 3,283.70 1,057.21 3,591.61 24,811.92
Rupee liabilities 13,253.81 6,907.63 2,172.48 875.21 696.16 23,905.29
Foreign currency liabilities 41.27 82.719 83.40 84.03 3717.80 669.29
Total Liabilities 13,295.08 6,990.42 2,255.88 959.24 1,073.96 24,574.58
Total (4329.79) 923.69 1027.82 97.97 2517.65 231.34
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D. Operating results:
m. Interest Income as a percentage to average Working Funds 6.74%
n.  Non-interest income(*) as a percentage to average Working Funds 0.08%
0.  Operating profit as a percentage to average Working Fund 1.00%
p.  Return on average assets 0.54%
g. Net Profit per employee (In Rs. Crore) 1.59

(*) Non-interest income excludes gain on forward exchange contract, write-back of provisions & contingencies no longer required
and deferred tax.

E. Movement in the provisions:

l. Provisions for Non Performing Assets (comprising loans, bonds and debentures in the nature of advance
and inter-corporate deposits) (excluding provision for standard assets)

Amount
(In Rs. Crore)

a)  Opening balance as at the beginning of the financial year 27.44
Add: Provisions made during the year 0.00
Less: Write off, write back of excess provision 0.34
b)  Closing balance at the close of the year 27.10

ll.  Provisions for Depreciation in Investments

c) Opening Balance at the beginning of the financial year 0.60
Add: i)  Provisions made during the year 0.00
i) Appropriation, if any, from Investment Fluctuation Reserve Account during the year 0.00
Less: i)  Write off during the year 0.07
ii)  Transfer, if any, to Investment Fluctuation Reserve Account 0.00
d) Closing balance at the close of the financial year 0.53

F. Restructured Accounts:

a) Total Amount of loan Assets Nil

b)  Sub-standard/Doubtful Assets Nil

G. Assets Sold to Securitisation Company / Reconstruction Company: Nil
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H. Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps: (In Rs. Crore)
a)  Notional principal of swap agreements 1,000.00
b)  Nature and terms of the swaps Fixed to Floating
Hedge Interest
Rate Swap
c) Quantification of losses Nil
d) Collateral required Nil
e) Concentration of credit risk 5.07
f) The “Fair” value of total swaps book (1.18)
(as certified by the Management)
. Interest Rate Derivatives:
S.No Particulars Amount
1 Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
undertaken during the year Nil
2 Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding as on 30" June 2007 Nil
3 Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding and not “highly effective” Nil
4 Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding and not “highly effective” Nil
J. Investments in Non Government Debt Securities:
A.  Issuer Categories in respect of investments made (In Rs. Crore)
Sr. Issuer Amount of
No. Amount Investments ‘below investment | ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
made through grade’ Securities | Securities | Securities
private placement held held
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
1 PSUs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 Fls 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 Banks 45.00 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 Private Corporates 4.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 Others 230.63 0.83 0.00 0.00 0.83
7 Provisions held towards
depreciation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 280.53 45.83 0.00 0.00 0.83
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B.  Non performing investments (In Rs. Crore)
Particulars Amount
Opening balance 0.00
Additions during the year 0.00
Reductions during the year 0.00
Closing balance 0.00
Total Provisions held 0.00

K. Consolidated Financial Statements: Fl has no subsidiary
a) Extent of Consolidation
b)  Accounting Policies

L. Disclosure on Risk Exposures in Derivatives: (In Rs. Crore)

SI. Particulars Currency Interest Rate

No. Derivatives Derivatives

1 Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

a) For hedging 0.00 1,000.00
b)  For trading 0.00 0.00

2 Marked to Market Position
a) Asset (+) 0.00 0.00
b) Liabilities (-) 0.00 (1.18)

3 Credit Exposure 5.07
Likely impact of one percentage change
in interest rate (100*PV01)

a) on hedging derivatives 0.00 29.75
b)  on trading derivatives 0.00
5 Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed during the year
a) on hedging
- Maximum 0.00 29.75
- Minimum 0.00 0.00
b) on trading
- Maximum 0.00 0.00
- Minimum 0.00 0.00

(as certified by the Management)

77




T STErE o (4] NATIONAL HOUSING BANK

M. Exposures where the Fl had exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year:

The prudential exposure limit was exceeded in one of the case by Rs.8.25 crore due to reduction in capital
fund which has since been regularised.

N. Corporate Debt Restructuring:  Nil

Schedule | to XIV form an integral part of accounts.

Signatures on schedules | to XIV for identification

Sd/-
A. P. Saxena

Assistant General Manager

Sd/-
Surindra Kumar
Executive Director

Directors

Vidyadhar K. Phatak

Sd/-
Shyamala Gopinath

Sd/-
Nilam Sawhney

New Delhi, October 22, 2007
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Sd/-
R. V. Verma
Executive Director

Dr. Errol D'Souza

Sd/-
Lakshmi Chand

Sd/-
M.V.PC. Sastry

Sd/-
R. S. Garg
General Manager

Sd/-
S. Sridhar
Chairman & Managing Director

Sd/- Sd/-
R. V. Shastri Jayshree A. Vyas

Sd/-

Dr. H.S Anand Amitabh Verma

Mohinder Singh

For D. Singh & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Sd/-

(Ms. Simran Singh)

Partner

M.No.F 98641
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Slum Improvement and
Balance Sheet

Previous Year Liabilities Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
61.82 Special Fund
(Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) 61.82
Reserve:
26.27 (i) Special Reserve in terms of Section 36(1)(viii)
of Income Tax Act, 1961 29.33
3.00 (i) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 3.00
Profit & Loss Account:
151.89 Balance as per last balance sheet 159.30
1.41 Add: Profit transferred from the Profit & Loss
Account annexed 9.15 168.45
Current Liabilties & Provisions:
29.49 (i) Provision for Income Tax 34.89
0.51 (ii) Provision for Standard Assets 1.30
3.74 (iii) Provision for Bad Debts u/s 36(i)(viia)(c) of
IT Act, 1961 4.51
@ (iv) Others 0.00 40.70
8.84 Deferred Tax Liability 9.82
292.97 TOTAL 313.12
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Low Cost Housing Fund

as at 30th June, 2007

Previous Year Assets Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
Cash and Bank Balances:
0.08 (i) Current Account @
122.25 (i) Term Deposit with Banks / Fls 37.75 37.75
Investments
(at cost or market value whichever is less)
21.92 (i) Units of Mutual Funds 0.00
125.24 Loans & Advances 129.23
Other Assets:
3.04 (i) Interest Receivable on Bank Deposits 2.36
20.21 (i) Advance Tax, TDS and Payment
of Disputed Tax Demand, etc. 20.21
0.23 (iii) Amount Recoverable from General Fund 123.57 146.14
292.97 TOTAL 313.12

@ Amount less than Rs.0.50 lakh.
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Profit & Loss Account

Previous Year Expenditure

Current Year

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
@ 1. Other Expenditure 0.00
0.29 2. Provision for Standard Assets 0.79
1.14 3. Provision for Bad Debts u/s 36(1)(viia)(c) of IT Act, 1961 0.77
1.19 4. Deferred Tax 0.98
4.98 5. Provision for Income Tax 5.41
10.96 6.  Balance of Profit c/d 12.21
18.56 TOTAL 20.16
3.55 1. Transfer to Special Reserve in terms of Section 36(1)(viii) of
Income Tax Act, 1961 3.06
1.41 8. Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 9.15
10.96 TOTAL 12.21
@ Amount less than Rs.0.50 lakh.
Sd/- Sd/-
A. P. Saxena R. S. Garg
Assistant General Manager General Manager
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Surindra Kumar R. V. Verma S. Sridhar

Executive Director Executive Director

Directors

Vidyadhar K. Phatak Dr. Errol D'Souza

Sd/-
Shyamala Gopinath

Sd/-
Lakshmi Chand

Sd/-
Nilam Sawhney

Sd/-
M.V.PC. Sastry

New Delhi, October 22, 2007
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Sd/-
R. V. Shastri

Dr. H.S Anand

Mohinder Singh

Chairman & Managing Director

Sd/-
Jayshree A. Vyas

Sd/-
Amitabh Verma
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for the year ended 30th June, 2007

Previous Year Income Current Year
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
1. Interest on Loans & Advances and Bank Deposits : 18.68
1.37 (a) Loans & Advances 8.46
9.26 (b) Bank Deposits 10.22
1.93 2, Profit on sale of Investments 1.48
18.56 20.16
10.96 3. Balance of Profit brought down 12.21
10.96 12.21

Notes forming part of Accounts

1. Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account of Special Fund have been drawn in accordance with the provisions of National
Housing Bank (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) Regulation, 1993.

2. NHB (Slum Improvement and Low Cost Housing Fund) represent 40% of the amounts deposited by any person voluntarily
in accordance with the NHB Voluntary Deposit Scheme (VDS).

As per our attached Report of even date
For D. Singh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
(Ms. Simran Singh)
Partner
M.No.F 98641
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Senior Executives of National Housing Bank

IR, Y. quf
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R.V. Verma

Executive Director
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4. &. ®id
P. K. Kaul

General Manager
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A8l Yded
R. Bhalla

General Manager
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Surindra Kumar

Executive Director
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R. S. Garg

General Manager (Law)

3.
HET derd
R. Rajgopalan

General Manager




(R frd ek o H‘{Uf A H) (Wholly owned by the Reserve Bank of India)

Core 5-A, 3rd Floor, India Habitat Centre, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003. Tel.: 24649031-35 Fax: 24646988 Website: www.nhb.org.in
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